
Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board 
Wednesday, April 18, 2018; 3:00pm – 4:30pm 

Tompkins County Chamber of Commerce/CVB, 904 East Shore Drive, Ithaca 

 
AGENDA           Start 
1. STPB Meeting Minutes         3:00  

• ACTION – Approve March Meeting Minutes 
2. Privilege of the Floor           

• Limit of 3 minutes per person for members of the public to address the board    
3. Chair’s REPORT – Kelli Cartmill        3:05  
4. Staff REPORT – Nick Helmholdt        3:10 
5. Budget Request: NYS Matching Grant Funds – Peggy Coleman    3:15 

• ACTION – Vote to approve use of funds for NYS Matching Grant 
6. Combined Budget + Planning & Evaluation Committee Report    3:20 

• ACTION – Vote to accept Policy on Budget Reserve and Surplus Hotel Room Occupancy Tax 
7. Combined Tourism Grant Panel Update – Mike Mellor     3:30 

• ACTION – Vote to approve Tourism Project, New Tourism Initiative & Tourism Marketing & 
Advertising Grants 

8. Tourism Capital Grant Panel Update – Martha Armstrong     3:35 
• ACTION – Vote to approve Tourism Capital Grants 

9. Community Celebrations Grant Panel Update – Carol Kammen    3:40 
• ACTION – Vote to approve Community Celebrations Grants 

10. Outdoor Recreation Tourism Implementation: Final Draft – Andy Zepp   3:45 
• ACTION – Vote to accept Outdoor Recreation Tourism Implementation Plan  

11. Member Announcements          3:50 
12. Mission Impact Exercise – Josh Friedman       3:55 
13. Adjournment          4:30 
 
Agenda Packet 
1. March 2018 draft STPB meeting minutes 
2. NYS Matching Grant Funds Letter and Invoice 
3. Policy on Budget Reserve and Surplus Hotel Room Occupancy Tax 
4. Combined Tourism Grant Panel Recommendations 
5. Tourism Capital Grant Panel Recommendations 
6. Community Celebrations Grant Panel Recommendations 
7. Mission Impact Exercise – Review Documents 
8. CVB 1st Quarter Report 
 
 
 
 
 

MISSION: The Strategic Tourism Planning Board is charged by the 
Tompkins County Legislature with providing oversight and strategic 
direction for tourism initiatives that promote economic development and  
enhance the quality of life in Tompkins County. 

  



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Draft Meeting Minutes – March 21, 2018 

Date:  March 21, 2018 1 
Time:  3:00-4:30pm  2 
Location:          TC Chamber of Commerce/CVB, 904 East Shore Drive, Ithaca, NY 14850  3 
 4 
Attendees: 5 

Name  Representation 
Martha Armstrong A TCAD, Non-Voting 
Peggy Coleman P Chamber, Non-Voting 
Gary Ferguson P DIA, Non-Voting 

Anna Kelles P TC Legislature, Non-
Voting 

Dwight Mengel A Transportation, Non-
Voting 

John Spence P CAP, Non-Voting 
Jennifer Tavares P Chamber, Non-Voting 
   
Ethan Ash A Associate Member 
Jim Brophy A Associate Member 
Erica Frenay E Associate Member 
Carol Kammen A Associate Member 
Jon Reis P Associate Member 
Mary Kate Wheeler A Associate Member 
   
Nick Helmholdt P Staff 
Kristin McCarthy P Staff 

 7 
Guests:  Ronda Roaring, Katie Borgella, Erin Rafalowski, Jonathan Froelich, Danielle 8 
Baker, Sarah Imes, Kina Viola 9 
 10 
Chair Kelli Cartmill called the meeting to order at 3:04 pm.  11 
 12 
Opening Remarks/Changes to the Agenda – None 13 
 14 
February 21, 2018 STPB Meeting Minutes  15 
 16 
ACTION: Ken Jupiter moved to approve the February minutes. Mike Mellor seconded. 17 
Motion carried. 18 
 19 
Privilege of the Floor – Guest Ronda Roaring asked for a definition of “auricular tourism” 20 
(turned out to be a typo: “agriculinary tourism”), expressed her concerns with the 21 
Convention and Visitor Bureau’s 2018 Work Program, and spoke about the issue of 22 
reaching a more diverse audience for our local tourism market. 23 
 24 
Chair’s Report  –  Kelli Cartmill 25 
 26 
Kelli’s first order of business was to call for a vote to approve the 2018 STPB Member 27 
Goals. 28 

 29 
ACTION: Cara Nichols moved, and Mike Mellor seconded, approval of the 2018 STPB 30 
Member Goals. 31 

Name  Representation 
David Blake  P At-Large  
Brett Bossard E Arts-Culture 
Kelli Cartmill P Lodging 
Josh Friedman E Arts-Culture 
Steve Hugo A At-Large 
Ken Jupiter P At-Large  
Anne Kellerman P At-Large  
Doug Levine P Arts-Culture 
Mike Mellor P At-Large  
Cara Nichols P Ithaca College 
Stephen Nunley E At-Large 
Barbara Romano E Cornell University 
Monika Roth P Agriculture 
Sue Stafford E TC3 
Vacant N/A Lodging 
Baruch Whitehead P Arts-Culture 
Scott Wiggins P At-Large 
Andy Zepp P Recreation 



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Draft Meeting Minutes – March 21, 2018 

• Kelli thanked Peggy Coleman and Katie Borgella for their tremendous support 32 
during the transition between the end of Tom Knipe’s tenure and the start of Nick 33 
Helmholdt’s as tourism program director. 34 

• Julie Swigart resigned from her Lodging seat due to a family move out of state. A 35 
press release was published recently announcing the vacancy, and a few people 36 
have reached out to Kelli directly.  37 

• Baruch Whitehead asked if a section about diversity could be added to our grant 38 
applications. He also inquired about expanding the board’s outreach efforts to 39 
communities of color.  40 
 41 

Staff Report  –  Nick Helmholdt 42 
 43 

• Tourism Program has a new logo and brand guidelines. Nick will distribute 44 
electronic files shortly. 45 

• Grant application deadline was Monday, March 19th. There were 12 Tourism 46 
Program Grant requests for over $138,000; 10 New Tourism Initiative applications 47 
for roughly $102,000; 21 Tourism Marketing and Advertising grant applications for 48 
$63,000; and 15 Community Celebrations applications requesting over $25,000. 49 

• In addition, 7 Tourism Capital Grant applications were received for a total of more 50 
than $400,000 in funding requests. 51 

• The draft Outdoor Recreation Tourism Implementation Plan is out for public 52 
comment until April 9th. 53 

• Nick’s top priority is developing the 2019 Budget. 54 
 55 
Update: Outdoor Recreation Tourism Implementation Plan – Andy Zepp 56 
 57 
The plan has undergone extensive workshopping, including by the County’s Conservation 58 
Partners, and editorial review. Public comments will be collected until April 9 and a final 59 
draft should be ready for a vote by the April STPB meeting. Kudos and thanks were given 60 
to Erin Rafalowski for designing the draft plan. 61 
 62 
2017 CVB Annual Report and 2018 Work Program – Peggy Coleman 63 
 64 

• Peggy Coleman and CVB staff members Erin Rafalowski (digital marketing), 65 
Jonathan Froelich (meeting and conference sales), Danielle Baker (visitor 66 
experience), Sarah Imes (group tours), and Kina Viola (agriculinary tourism) spoke 67 
to the group about various aspects of the CVB’s 2017 Annual Report and 2018 68 
Work Program. Details can be found in the two reports, which are available upon 69 
request. Here, however, are some highlights from the CVB team’s presentation: 70 

• Everything within the 2018 Work Program was developed with the end goal of 71 
supporting the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan. 72 

• Sarah Imes shared a clip from a promotional video done to promote group tour 73 
sales 74 

• Jonathan is strategically marketing meeting and conference sales to associations 75 
and institutions of higher education. Her department partnered with I Love New 76 



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Draft Meeting Minutes – March 21, 2018 

York and BrandUSA to host familiarization tours for 27 people representing 26 77 
companies form China, the United Kingdom, Ireland and Scotland. 78 

• Team continues to recruit midweek tourism business and hopes to grow the 79 
Destination Weddings market by 20% in 2018. Sports tourism is another avenue 80 
they’d like to develop. In particular,TC3 has a wonderful disc golf facility and could 81 
attract winter visitors. 82 

• Tourism marketing collateral is being translated into Mandarin. 83 
• Digital marketing manager Erin Rafalowski reported that the Ithaca Events feature 84 

is popular among visitors to the CVB website. Top trending events include the 85 
Finger Lakes Grassroots and Ithaca Reggae Festivals.  86 

• Ithaca was named the 2017 Emerging Nature Destination in the USA by the Luxury 87 
Travel Guide Awards. 88 

• The CVB will be responsible for retail operations for the Heritage and Culture 89 
Center, which is slated to open in 2019; they want to be a value-added resource 90 
and not competition to merchants downtown. 91 

• Staff members are expanding marketing efforts for the Winter Recess program to 92 
new audiences. 93 

• The Visitor Profile Study continues to be a top priority for 2018. 94 
• Peggy welcomed suggestions for events from members but explained that to pitch 95 

ideas successfully to tour groups and other perspective visitors, the more notice, 96 
the better. A year’s notice is an ideal amount of time. She also reiterated the need 97 
to market events occurring at times other than July and August. 98 

      99 
Update: ACOD Grant Review Committee– John Spence 100 
 101 
There was $312,000 in funding requests but only $219,000 available. During the grant 102 
panel discussions, the question arose of whether money from the budget surplus could be 103 
applied to the ACOD program. However, Kelli informed the committee that timing wouldn’t 104 
allow for such a redistribution and advised them to proceed with the budget as given. The 105 
ACOD program for 2017 received a 10 percent boost in funding, and in 2018 they are 106 
asking for a 4 percent increase. For details on the applicant organizations and amounts 107 
requested and recommended, please see John Spence’s ACOD report, which is available 108 
upon request. 109 
 110 
ACTION: David Blake moved to recommend the 2018 ACOD grants. Scott Wiggins 111 
seconded. Motion carried. Doug Levine abstained. 112 
 113 
Update: STI Grant Panel –  Ken Jupiter 114 
 115 
Ken gave a brief overview of the Strategic Tourism Initiative (STI) grant program, which 116 
was created specifically to advance portions of the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan. It’s a 117 
two-part process (letter of interest followed by full application) and applications are 118 
accepted on a rolling basis.  119 
 120 
He brought three STI funding requests before the board for recommendation, two of which 121 
asked for less than the $25,000 grant minimum. He asked members to waive the 122 
minimum in those cases. 123 



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Draft Meeting Minutes – March 21, 2018 

 124 
ACTION: Vote to recommend STI grants  125 
 126 
David Blake moved to recommend gap funding ($13,000 for staff and $5,000 in 127 
microgrants) for the CVB’s Agritourism Program. Monika Roth seconded. Motion carried. 128 

 129 
A motion was made by Doug Levine, and seconded by Baruch Whitehead, to recommend 130 
a one-time override of the $25,000 grant minimum in relation to this request. Motion 131 
carried.  132 

 133 
Scott Wiggins moved, and David Blake seconded, recommendation of a Tompkins County 134 
Workforce Development Board/Hospitality Star request for $11,175 in funding for the 135 
“Visitor Journey A2D Ambassador Training Program.” The motion was passed by the 136 
members present, who also recommended waiving the $25,000 grant amount minimum.  137 

 138 
Doug Levine moved, and Monika Roth seconded, to recommend $26,000 in funding the 139 
“Dryden Rail Trail Route 13 Crossing Preliminary Design and F.H. Fox Bridge 140 
Engineering” feasibility study from the Town of Dryden. Anne Kellerman opposed the 141 
motion. Motion carried. 142 
 143 
Member Announcements 144 
 145 
None 146 
 147 
 148 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:46 by Chair Kelli Cartmill. 149 









Invoice
Date

4/4/2018

Invoice #

1509

Bill To

Tompkins County Planning
Dariele Drake
121 E Court St #1
Ithaca, NY 14850

Ithaca Tompkins County Convention and Visitors
Bureau
904 East Shore Dr.
Ithaca, NY 14850

P.O. No. Terms

upon receipt

Project

Total

DescriptionQuantity Rate Amount

County match NYS Matching Funds Grant 1,611.00 1,611.00
******Difference to meet increase from NYS Matching Grant*******
Sales Tax 0.00% 0.00

$1,611.00



 

DRAFT – STPB policy – Budget Reserve & Surplus Hotel Room Occupancy Tax – April 3, 2018 

Tompkins County Tourism Program 

DRAFT APRIL 3, 2018 

Memo: STPB Policy – Budget Reserve and Surplus Hotel Room Occupancy Tax  

On April 2, 2018 members of the Strategic Tourism Planning Board’s Budget Committee and 
Planning & Evaluation Committee met to discuss approaches to budget reserves and surplus 
room tax collections. The following document is the result of discussion among the committees. 
It is presented in a draft form for consideration by the full STPB. 

I. Reserve Funds 
a. Purpose of Reserve Funds: External factors can have adverse effects on local 

room tax revenues. A wide variety of circumstances could lead to reduced 
visitation to Tompkins County. Some organizations integral to the local tourism 
sector rely on room tax funding as a primary source of funding. If room tax 
revenue declines, the reserve fund is intended to assist organizations of vital 
importance to sustain the county’s tourism sector.  

b. Target Reserves: Five percent of the projected annual Tompkins County hotel 
room occupancy tax collections should be held in reserve. (For example, if 
$3,000,000 in hotel room occupancy tax is projected for a given year then 
$150,000 should be held in reserve.) 

c. Use of Reserves: If room taxes decline year over year, the STPB may authorize 
reserves to be used to sustain essential operations necessary to our local tourism 
sector.  

II.  Surplus Funds 
a. Source: Each year the STPB prepares a projection of Tompkins County’s hotel 

room occupancy tax collections. This forecast is based on detailed market data 
and professional knowledge about the region and industry. From time to time, 
room tax collections exceed this projection, leading to surplus funds.  

b. Fully Fund Reserves: To maintain an adequate reserve balance, surplus funds 
should first be applied to achieve the reserve target. 

c. Allocate Remaining Surplus to Existing Programs: To ensure a transparent, 
equitable process for accessing County room tax funds, any surplus more than the 
amount needed for reserve should be applied within the existing framework of the 
Tompkins County Tourism Program. 

i. Preferred Application / Strategic Tourism Implementation: The STPB is 
charged with the implementation of the Tompkins County Strategic 
Tourism Plan. To date there are several “critical actions” in the plan which 
are not yet complete. To accomplish these actions, the STPB prefers to 
allocate all remaining surplus funds to the Strategic Tourism 
Implementation (STI) grant program. This program funds projects which 



 

DRAFT – STPB policy – Budget Reserve & Surplus Hotel Room Occupancy Tax – April 3, 2018 

advance tourism projects in Tompkins County that enhance quality of life 
and promote economic development. This program uses a rolling grant 
application, which would allow funds to be applied in the same year as the 
surplus. 

ii. Alternative Application / Marketing & Product Development: The 2020 
Strategic Tourism Plan established a policy of splitting funds 60/40 for 
marketing and product development. When all “critical actions” defined in 
the current Strategic Tourism Plan are complete, or at the discretion of the 
Tompkins County Legislature, surplus funds may be made available for 
one-time projects in accord with the 60/40 policy. (For example, if 
$100,000 of surplus funds are available, $60,000 should be allocated to 
marketing and $40,000 to product development.) Due to the timing of 
room tax collections and grant decisions, funds would be made available 
in the following year. 

 



Spring 2018 Tourism Grant Applications ‐ Tompkins County Tourism Program

4/10/2018

Grant Program Applicant Organization Project Title

Tourism 

Project 

Request

New 

Tourism 

Initiative 

Request

Tourism 

Marketing 

and 

Advertising 

Request

Total Funds 

Requested

Tourism 

Project 

Recommend

New Tourism 

Initiative 

Recommend

Tourism 

Marketing 

and 

Advertising 

Recommend

Total Funds 

Recommend Committee Comments

New Tourism Initiative
Center for Transformative Action 

Discover Cayuga Lake 

2018 ‐ Introducing the MV Teal to 

Tompkins Tourism Community
$1,600  $1,600  $1,600  $1,600 

The committee was favorably impressed by the proposal. MV Teal is a 

welcome return of an event‐size tour boat. 

New Tourism Initiative
Cooperative Extension Association 

of Tompkins County 
2018 Open Farm Days Weekend $6,250  $6,250  $6,250  $6,250 

The committee was favorably impressed by the proposal and suggests cross 

promoting this event with "Authentically Rural." This application is consistent 

with and supports our agritourism initiative.

New Tourism Initiative History Center in Tompkins County Authentically Rural $8,000  $8,000  $8,000  $8,000 
The committee was favorably impressed by the proposal and suggests cross 

promoting this event with "Open Farm Days." This application is consistent 

with and supports our agritourism initiative.

New Tourism Initiative Village at Ithaca  2018 Hair & Self‐Care Festival $8,000  $8,000  $4,000  $4,000 

This event promotes our diversity objectives and is something new for our 

market. The committee felt this application needed a more detailed 

marketing plan. 

New Tourism Initiative 

+ Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Community Arts Partnership of 

Tompkins County  

2018 Greater Ithaca Art Trail Open 

Studio Weekends
$3,500  $3,270  $6,770  $2,000  $2,850  $4,850 

Great event that has been around for a while and definitely brings in out of 

county visitors, at least day trips.

New Tourism Initiative 

+ Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Finger Lakes Sailing Charter Finger Lakes Sailing Charter $37,000  $0  $37,000  $0  $0  $0 

This application was deemed ineligible for funding.

New Tourism Initiative 

+ Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Tea Leaves Inc  2018 Ithaca Reggae Fest $10,000  $5,000  $15,000  $5,000  $4,113  $9,113 
The reggae fest promotes our diversity objectives, continues a tradition of 

reggae in the area and is a huge draw from outside the area.

New Tourism Initiative 

+ Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Weave Community Inc  2018 AskPearl $3,000  $2,000  $5,000  $0  $0  $0 
The committee thought this app would be better suited for locals. There 

were many concerns about how this would work with ongoing efforts by the 

CVB to promote local events.

New Tourism Initiative 

+ Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Wharton Studio Museum 
2018 Wharton Studio Era 

Headphone Walking‐Play
$5,000  $1,000  $6,000  $5,000  $1,000  $6,000 

The committee was favorably impressed by the proposal. Wharton does a 

great job and provides important historical as well as entertaining work.

New Tourism Initiative 

+ Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Wizarding Weekend 2018 Wizarding Weekend $15,000  $5,000  $20,000  $15,000  $4,100  $19,100 
This event has been a great success from the beginning.  Gets world wide 

attention so is good for all of our programs. 

Tourism Project Grant Ithaca Children's Garden 
2018 Enhancing Visitor Experience 

365 days a year
$5,007  $5,007  $0  $0 

The committee did not see the value of this project to attract visitors.

Tourism Project Grant
Latino Civic Association of 

Tompkins County 
2018 Latin@ Heritage Month $2,000  $2,000  $2,000  $2,000 

The committee felt that this applicant may want to consider asking for 

additional funding in future grant rounds. This event promotes diversity and 

draws from outside the area.

Tourism Project Grant Sciencenter  2018 Vet Exhibit $25,000  $25,000  $25,000  $25,000 

The committee was favorably impressed by the proposal and has consistently 

found that the Sciencenter does great work and offers a good investment of 

tourism funds.

Tourism Project Grant + 

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Wharton Studio Museum  2018 Ithaca Fantastik $25,000  $2,600  $27,600  $15,000  $2,600  $17,600 
The committee would like to find ways for this event to scale up to a bigger 

audience and suggests the applicant markets the event in conjunction with 

CVB to ramp up attendance.  

Tourism Project Grant + 

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Community Arts Partnership of 

Tompkins County 

2018 Spring Writes Literary 

Festival
$3,500  $3,270  $6,770  $3,500  $3,120  $6,620 

A unique event that definitely brings in participants from outside the area.  

Tourism Project Grant + 

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Downtown Ithaca Alliance  2018 Ice Fest $12,000  $2,500  $14,500  $10,000  $2,100  $12,100 

The Ice Fest is one of the great events put on in conjunction with DIA.  

Participants and spectators from outside the area.  Puts us on the map with 

another segment and is in the winter! The committee encourages the 

applicant to consider partnering with Museum of the Earth for a 2nd Ice Bar 

and downtown venues for Ice‐themed films.

Tourism Project Grant + 

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Groton Olde Home Days 

Committee 
Groton Olde Home Days  $2,000  $500  $2,500  $0  $0  $0 

This application was deemed more appropriate for the Community 

Celebrations grant.

Tourism Project Grant + 

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Ithaca Asian American Association 

/ Social Ventures Inc 

2018 Finger Lakes International 

Dragon Boat Festival
$15,000  $3,000  $18,000  $9,000  $2,600  $11,600 

Another great event, hopefully we can help them put it on every year instead 

of intermittently. The committee would prefer to fund events at other times 

of the year. 

Tourism Project Grant + 

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Ithaca Festival  2018 Ithaca Festival After Dark $15,000  $5,000  $20,000  $10,000  $3,100  $13,100 

Tremendous performances and makes a real attempt to attract and count 

attendees from outside the area.  Has a loyal following locally and regionally. 

Gives Tompkins County unique performances not seen in large pockets of the 

country. The committtee was concerned about the timing of this application 

and that the application lacked focus.  

Tourism Project Grant + 

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Ithaca Shakespeare Company 
2018 Summer Shakespeare 

Festival
$17,754  $1,000  $18,754  $12,000  $1,000  $13,000 

The committee asks that the applicant consider ways to use a donated or 

borrowed golf cart and consider partnering with "Discover Cayuga Lake" 

Tourism Project Grant + 

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Ithaca Underground 
2018‐2019 Big Day In, Naked 

Noise, November Music Series
$7,550  $4,450  $12,000  $6,000  $3,600  $9,600  A trio of events that help give Tompkins County the unique, quirky cultural 

environment we are known for.  Also, keeps us more current.

Tourism Project Grant + 

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Paleontological Research 

Institution 

2018 Living Fossils: Travelers from 

Deep Time
$8,300  $3,000  $11,300  $5,000  $2,100  $7,100  PRI is a nice amenity to have. A good venue to support and hopefully help 

improve its marketing to showcase the excellent exhibits.

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising
Civic Ensemble  2018 Civic Acts: New Plays Toward 

The Beloved Community

$4,390  $4,390  $4,390  $4,390 

The committee was favorably impressed by the proposal and asked that the 

applicant contact the CVB regarding group tour marketing considerations. 

The committee felt this event contributes to the area's reputation.

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising
Downtown Ithaca Alliance  Bite of Ithaca 2018 $2,500  $2,500  $2,500  $2,500 

Bite of Ithaca may not be unique to Ithaca but it is popular and would be 

missed if it weren’t available to showcase the food and beverage possibilities 

we have. 

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising
Ithaca Children's Garden 

2018 Showcasing ICG as a 

destination: Zooming in on nature‐

play, family‐centered outdoor 

$5,000  $5,000  $5,000  $5,000  The committee was favorably impressed by the proposal and glad to see this 

applicant seeking funding for marketing.

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising
Kitchen Theatre Company  2018 $5,000  $5,000  $5,000  $5,000  The committee was favorably impressed by the proposal and sees the 

Kitchen Theatre as a foundational cultural venue for the area.

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising

Trumansburg Chamber of 

Commerce 
2018 TACC Marketing and 

Advertising

$2,737  $2,737  $2,737  $2,737  The committee was favorably impressed by the proposal. The committee 

wants to support communities outside Ithaca and sees this as a good fit.

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising
Trumansburg Robotics, Inc.  2018 Euro Meet '18 $750  $750  $0  $0 

This application was incomplete and thus ineligible for funding.

Tourism Marketing & 

Advertising
Village of Trumansburg 

2018 Farmers' Market Marketing 

and Advertising
$1,225  $1,225  $1,225  $1,225  The committee was favorably impressed by the proposal.  The committee 

wants to support communities outside Ithaca and sees this as a good fit.

$138,111 $97,350 $63,192 Awards $97,500 $46,850 $53,135 $197,485

$107,373 $80,900 $53,135 Available  $107,373 $80,900 $53,135 $241,408

($30,738) ($16,450) ($10,057) Difference* $9,873 $34,050 $0 $43,923



 

Tompkins County Area Development 
401 E. State St. | E. MLK Jr. St., Suite 402B  
Ithaca, New York 14850 
T: 607-273-0005 | www.tcad.org  

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 To: STP Board 
 From: Martha Armstrong  <marthaa@tcad.org> 
 Date: April 16, 2018 
 Re: Review 2018 Tourism Capital Grant Applications – April 18, 2018  
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
At the April 18 meeting, we will review the Tourism Capital Grant applications summarized in 
the table below.  The table indicates the project value and the request and the Tourism Capital 
Grant Review Committee recommendations to the STP Tourism Board.  Application briefs and 
synopses of each application, reviewers’ comments, and additional guidance for reviewers are on 
the following pages.  
 
Complete applications and supporting materials provided by the applicants are available online at 
https://apricot.socialsolutions.com/auth. To access, STP Board members and legislators can use: 
tourism@tct.com  Password: Tourism (case sensitive). 
 
 
Application Summary 
 
Applicant 

App*  
Type 

Project  
Value 

Request RECOMMENDATION 
Total 2018 2019 

Center	for	Transformative	
Action/Discover	Cayuga	Lake:	boat	 C	

	
213,241	

	
70,000	

	
50,000	

	
50,000	

	

Friends	of	Stewart	Park:	paviliion	 C	 213,300	 67,500	 50,000	 40,000		 10,000	
Ithaca	Children's	Garden:	building	 F	 72,525	 59,325	 30,000	 30,000	 	
PRI	Mus	of	Earth:	exhibit	 C	 72,000	 24,000	 0	 0	 	
Sciencenter:	exhibit	 C	 150,000	 50,000	 10,000	 10,000	 	
State	Theatre	of	Ithaca:	accessibility	 C	 90,000	 30,000	 26,000	 26,000	 	
The	History	Center:	center	 C	 6,314,000	 100,000	 80,000	 50,000	 30,000	
Totals  7,125,066	 400,825	 246,000	 206,000	 40,000	
* C is Capital Investment grant, F is Feasibility Study 
 
2018 TCG Budget Notes 
 
The Tourism Capital Grant program has $206,000 available for grants in 2018. The Review Committee 
recommended $206,000 in funds be awarded for 2018 and an additional $40,000 to be awarded through 
multi-year awards. 
 
The TCG Review Committee separately reviewed the Sciencenter’s 2015 Sagan Planet Walk. 
The original scope of that award could not be completed due to forces beyond the Sciencenter’s 
control. As a result, The Review Committee recommends re-purposing the unspent funds, 
$13,182, to support the Sciencenter’s 2018 proposal. See supporting memo. 



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 2 

Application Briefs 
 
Center	for	Transformative	Action/Discover	Cayuga	Lake:	The	MV	Teal	-	A	New	Tourism	and	Event	
Venture	on	Cayuga	Lake	
Discover	Cayuga	Lake	will	introduce	a	new	tour	boat	to	Cayuga	Lake	in	2018.		The	MV	Teal	is	a	63-foot	
passenger	vessel,	capable	of	accommodating	over	70	passengers.	The	boat	and	associated	programs	will	
also	support	the	continuing	not-for-profit	educational	mission	of	the	Cayuga	Lake	Floating	Classroom.	
Requested	funds	will	help	purchase	the	Teal	and	bring	it	into	service	during	May	of	2018.	Timing	is	
critical	to	restore	service	to	school	clients	and	begin	serving	springtime	visitors	to	the	region.		
 
Friends	of	Stewart	Park:	2018	Stewart	Park	Revitalization	-	Phase	3	Building	Improvements	
Friends	of	Stewart	is	working	in	partnership	with	the	City	of	Ithaca	to	restore	Stewart	Park's	historic	park	
buildings.	This	request	is	to	continue	the	restoration	work	on	the	Picnic	Pavilion.	Previous	grants	funded	
new	bathrooms	and	the	restoration	of	the	seven	semi-circular	door	&	window	units.	This	request	is	for	
repairing	and	painting	the	pavilion's	interior	walls	and	ceiling,	replacing	interior	and	exterior	light	
fixtures,	and	foundation	repairs.	
	
Ithaca	Children's	Garden:	2018-2019	Urban	Environmental	Education	Center	
An	architect	will	conduct	a	feasibility	study	for	an	urban	environmental	education	and	visitor	center	
adjacent	to	ICG’s	current	3-acre	parcel.	The	study	will	include	an	in-depth	discovery	phase	including	
stakeholder	design	charrettes,	site	analysis	of	2-3	potential	placements,	building	code	and	permitting	
requirements,	conceptual	schematics,	a	construction	budget,	and	a	final	presentation.	ICG	will	then	be	
prepared	to	embark	on	a	capital	campaign	to	realize	the	design.	
	
Paleontological	Research	Institution:	2019	Climate	and	Energy	
PRI	will	create	a	new	permanent	exhibition	at	the	Museum	of	the	Earth	that	addresses	the	issue	of	
climate	change	and	energy.	Creative	graphics	plus	interactive	and	hands-on	props	will	promote	
engagement	and	discussion	about	the	connections	between	climate	change,	energy,	and	life,	both	
locally	and	globally.	This	project	will	increase	the	visitor	appeal	by	enhancing	MoTE’s	permanent	
exhibitions	and	extending	visitors'	learning	opportunities	to	encompass	the	topic	of	climate	change.	
	
Sciencenter:	2018	Build	Move	Live	Play	
This	exhibition	will	be	the	Sciencenter’s	cornerstone	exhibition,	occupying	its	largest	exhibit	hall	and	
serving	as	a	signature	tourist	attraction.	Build–Move–Live–Play	is	an	interactive	exhibition	where	visitors	
learn	the	“how	to”	of	engineering	by	experimenting	with	simple	machines,	construction	materials,	and	
air	pressure.	Guests	design,	build,	and	test	their	own	creations.	They	will	also	learn	“why	we	build”	
through	real	life	design	problems	and	stories	of	people	who	have	tackled	real	world	problems.		
	
State	Theatre	of	Ithaca,	Inc.:	2018:State	Theatre	Accessibility	and	Sound	Improvements 
At	the	State	Theatre,	only	5	of	1,600	seats	are	compliant	as	per	the	Americans	with	Disabilities	Act	
(ADA).		This	project	will	create	a	new	platform	area	with	great	sight	visibility	of	the	stage	for	those	who	
use	wheelchairs.	It	will	more	than	double	the	number	of	wheelchair	accessible	seats.	The	project	will	
also	move	the	sound	booth	to	an	area	where	the	technicians	will	gather	better	data	on	the	sound	
quality	throughout	the	Theatre,	providing	better	sound	quality	for	all	patrons.	
	
The	History	Center	in	Tompkins	County:	2018	Tompkins	Center	for	History	and	Culture	Build	Out	
The	Tompkins	Center	for	History	and	Culture	(TCHC)	will	be	open	in	2019	on	the	Ithaca	Commons	as	a	
collective	of	history,	heritage	and	cultural	organizations.	The	co-location	with	the	downtown	Visitors	
Center	ensures	that	this	will	be	a	destination.	Also	represented	will	be	Wharton	Studio	Museum,	Historic	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 3 

Ithaca,	Ithaca	Aviation	Heritage	Foundation,	Dorothy	Cotton	Institute,	Community	Arts	Partnership,	the	
Sustainability	Center	and	the	Discovery	Trail.	The	grant	will	fund	the	construction	of	exhibits,	retail	area,	
technology	infrastructure	and	condensed	storage	units. 
 
Synopses	of	each	application,	as	written	by	the	applicants,	are	on	page	4-10.	
	
	 	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 4 

Synopsis Center	for	Transformative	Action/Discover	Cayuga	Lake	
The	MV	Teal	-	A	New	Tourism	and	Event	Venture	on	Cayuga	Lake	
Type	Capital	Investment	Grant	
	
Agency	Annual	Operating	Budget	$344,040	
Grant	Request	$70,000	
Project	Value	$213,241	
	
Summary		
Discover	Cayuga	Lake,	via	the	Center	for	Transformative	Action,	hopes	to	introduce	a	new	tour	boat	to	
Cayuga	Lake	in	2018.		The	MV	Teal	is	a	63-foot	passenger	vessel,	capable	of	accommodating	over	70	
passengers.	It	will	provide	a	new	lake-access	experience	for	tourists,	and	an	attractive	event	platform	
and	partnership	opportunity	for	local	businesses.		The	boat	and	associated	programs	will	also	support	
the	continuing	not-for-profit	educational	mission	of	the	Cayuga	Lake	Floating	Classroom.	The	county	
funds	requested	are	necessary	to	help	us	purchase	the	Teal,	complete	updates,	and	bring	it	into	service	
during	May	of	2018.		Timing	is	critical,	as	we	hope	to	restore	service	to	long-standing	school	clients	
during	the	spring	semester,	and	also	to	begin	serving	springtime	visitors	to	the	region.		
	
Schedule		Preparatory	phases	of	this	project	are	already	underway.		We	expect	to	complete	purchase	
and	first-year	refurbishment	work	by	the	end	of	June,	2018.	
	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Goals	Addressed	by	this	project		
-	Edutourism	-	Increase	educational	tourism	
-	Outdoor	-	Expand	outdoor	recreation	and	other	tourism	related	to	our	outstanding	natural	amenities	
-	Marketing	-	Maximize	the	effectiveness	of	destination	marketing,	advertising,	and	public	relations	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Critical	Action	Addressed	by	this	project	–		Yes	
We	are	participating	in	meetings	with	entities	involved	in	the	Blueway	Trail,	in	hope	of	developing	a	
coordinated	online	gateway	for	visitors	interested	in	lake-based	experiences.	(Critical	Action	#10.)		In	
keeping	with	the	Heritage	Tourism	Implementation	Plan,	we	are	also	working	with	Heritage	Ithaca	and	
the	History	Center	to	coordinate	our	presentation	of	regional	heritage	with	information	and	materials	
developed	by	them.		We	also	are	pursuing	meetings	with	Experience!	The	Finger	Lakes,	Ithaca	is	
Foodies,	Ithaca	Farmers'	Market	and	the	Cayuga	Wine	Trail	to	plan	a	"Taste	of	Cayuga"	agriculinary	
cruise	series.	
	
Total	Attendance	(Current)		 2,491	 	 	 	
Out	of	County	Visitor	Attendance	(Current)		 400	 	
%	of	Current	Out	of	County	Visitors		 16%	 	 	
Total	Attendance	(Yr	3	Projected)	 6,000	 	 		
Out	of	County	Visitor	Attendance	(Yr	3	projected)		 4,000	
%	of	3yr	Projected	Out	of	County	Visitors		 80%	 	
	
Tourism	Grants	previous	3	years	
2017	-	Tourism	Capital	Grant	Award,	"Floating	Classroom	Edu-Tourism	Feasibility	Study,	($5500)	
2015	-	Spring	New	Tourism	Initiative	Grant,	"Exploring	Edu-Tourism	on	Cayuga	Lake",	($1000)	
	
Can	accept	award	over	2	years?		No		Over	3	years?			No	
	 	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 5 

Reviewer	Comments	on	The	MV	Teal	-	A	New	Tourism	and	Event	Venture	on	Cayuga	Lake	
	
Strengths	
	

1. Very	clear	and	focused	need	with	a	tangible	goal	that	can	be	used	right	away.	
2. This	is	a	sellable	tourism	experience/product.		
3. It	will	bring	new	group	tourism	activities	to	the	community.	
4. Good	connection	with	Blueway	Trail,	a	priority	for	the	tourism	strategy	goals	
5. grows	our	outdoor	recreation	options		
6. important	lake	access	coupled	with	important	narrative	
7. love	the	tourism	and	education	component	
8. This	organization	has	been	in	existence	for	15	years,	and	its	leaders	have	demonstrated	

successes	and	passion	for	what	they	do.	
9. Finances:	three	revenue	streams;	positive	cash	flow	after	year	one;	$125K	in	hand	

	
Weaknesses	
	

1. Projections	for	local	resident	traffic/out	of	county	visitor	traffic	are	aggressive.		
2. It	is	a	seasonal	attraction	with	seasonal	vulnerabilities	
3. Not	convinced	how	this	will	effect	hotel	room	nights.		
4. Have	not	managed	tour	business	like	this	before.	If	the	visitor	projections	are	off,	their	revenue	

projections	will	be.	
5. The	"unknowns"	-	large	investment	in	a	boat	and	much	can	go	wrong	-	unpredictable	expenses	

even	with	the	best	planning	
6. They	don't	seem	to	have	a	strong	history	of	fundraising.	

	
 
Other	Comments	
	 	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 6 

Synopsis Friends	of	Stewart	Park	
Stewart	Park	Revitalization	-	Phase	3	Building	Improvements 
Type	Capital	Investment	Grant	
	
Agency	Annual	Operating	Budget	$150,000	
Grant	Request		$67,500	
Project	Value		$213,300	
	
Summary		
Friends	of	Stewart	is	working	in	partnership	with	the	City	of	Ithaca	to	restore	Stewart	Park's	historic	park	
buildings.	This	funding	request	is	to	continue	the	restoration	work	on	the	Picnic	Pavilion.	Previous	TCTP	
Capital	Program	grants	have	helped	fund	new	bathrooms	and	the	restoration	of	the	seven	semi-circular	
door	&	window	units	on	the	west,	north	and	east	building	elevations.	This	Phase	3	request	is	for	
repairing	and	painting	the	pavilion's	interior	walls	and	ceiling,	replacing	the	interior	light	fixtures,	minor	
foundation	repairs	and	replacing	exterior	lighting	fixtures	located	under	the	veranda	ceiling.	
	
Schedule		The	project	can	be	completed	in	8	months	between	mid-October	2018,	when	the	pavilion	
rental	season	ends	and	May	2019	before	rental	season	begins.	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Goals	Addressed	by	this	project		
-	Arts,	Culture,	Heritage	-	Develop	Ithaca	and	Tompkins	County	as	a	central	arts,	cultural	and	heritage	
tourism	destination	in	the	Finger	Lakes	
-	Sports	-	Increase	sports	tourism-Cayuga	lake,	gorges	and	waterfalls,	trails,	parks,	and	natural	areas	
-	Festivals	and	Events	-	Grow	the	visitor	attraction	and	positive	impacts	of	vibrant	festivals	and	events	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Critical	Action	Addressed	by	this	project	–	Yes	
The	2020	Strategic	Tourism	Plan's	Focus	Area	on	Lakes,	Trails,	Parks	and	Gorges	Focus	Area	includes	the	
goal	to	expand	outdoor	recreation	and	other	tourism	related	to	our	outstanding	natural	amenities:	
Cayuga	Lake,	gorges	and	waterfalls,	trails,	parks,	and	natural	areas.	One	critical	action	is	to	support	the	
Stewart	Park	Rehabilitation	Plan	(now	known	as	the	Stewart	Park	Revitalization	Plan).		One	of	the	
priority	projects	in	SPRP	is	to	restore	the	Picnic	Pavilion.		This	work	will	be	advanced	towards	its	
completion	by	supporting	the	third	phase	of	pavilion	restoration	described	in	this	grant	application.	
	
Total	Attendance	(Current)		 525,000	 	 	 	
Out	of	County	Visitor	Attendance	(Current)		 175,000	 	
%	of	Current	Out	of	County	Visitors		 33%	 	 	
Total	Attendance	(Yr	3	Projected)	 Not	provided	 	 		
Out	of	County	Visitor	Attendance	(Yr	3	projected)		 	
%	of	3yr	Projected	Out	of	County	Visitors		 	 	
	
Tourism	Grants	previous	3	years	
2017	-	Stewart	Park	Building	Restoration	-	Phase	2,	Pavillion	restoration		$25,000	Capital	Grant		
2015	–	Stewart	Park	Building	Study,	architect	cost	and	prioritize	projects	$20,000	Feasibility	Study	grant	
	
Can	accept	award	over	2	years?		Yes		Over	3	years?			Yes	
  



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 7 

Reviewer	Comments	on	Stewart	Park	Revitalization	-	Phase	3	Building	Improvements 
	
Strengths	
	

1. Significant	role	in	our	local	tourism	(highest	number	of	visitors)	on	one	of	the	smallest	budgets.	
2. Supports	festival	and	events	
3. Access	to	Cayuga	Lake	
4. Important	for	tourism	but	also	important	for	community	-	win	win	
5. Revitalization	of	Stewart	Park;	value	of	the	existing	structure;	adds	to	overall	experience	of	the	

park	and	lake	
6. This	project	has	been	continually	funded	through	previous	phases	and	it	would	be	good	to	see	

them	realize	the	final	intended	outcome.	
7. Ability	to	carryout	project	--	Organization	has	demonstrated	capacity,	successes,	and	solid	

marketing	and	imagery.		
8. Possible	increase	in	revenues,	if	City	increases	rental	rates	

	
Weaknesses	
	

1. It's	a	easier	to	make	an	argument	for	historic	preservation	and	prevention	of	blight	than	tourism	
benefit.	

2. This	capital	investment	is	unlikely	to	grow	tourism	or	result	in	new	marketable	product	or	room	
nights.		

3. Not	sure	City	the	best	for	managing	rentals;	the	Picnic	Pavilion	rents	cheap	and	has	low	vacancy.		
4. How	has	FSP	quantified	their	visitor	data?	Their	numbers	vary	between	350	and	525K	annually.	
5. Friends	of	Stewart	Park	occasionally	has	grant	projects	that	run	far	longer	than	the	original	

deadline.	
6. Seems	we've	already	given	quite	a	bit	of	money	to	the	same	project.	

 
Other	Comments	
	

1. City	and	County	are	exploring	ownership	models	for	Stewart	Park.	
2. Trail	is	bringing	many	more	users	to	Stewart	Park.	
3. Many	visitors	go	to	Stewart	Park.	It	says	who	we	are.	
4. Adds	to	tourism	experience,	more	than	increasing	the	number	of	tourists	 	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 8 

Synopsis Ithaca	Children's	Garden	
Urban	Environmental	Education	Center	
Type	Feasibility	Study	
	
Agency	Annual	Operating	Budget		$424,000	
Grant	Request	$59,325	
Project	Value		$72,525	
	
Summary		
Ithaca	Children’s	Garden	will	hire	an	architectural	firm	to	conduct	a	feasibility	study	for	an	urban	
environmental	education	and	visitor	center	adjacent	to	ICG’s	current	3-acre	parcel.	This	new	
construction	will	showcase	the	very	best	in	environmental	design	and	urban	ecology	while	keeping	our	
primary	audiences	-	children	and	their	caregivers	-	at	the	center.	The	feasibility	study	will	explore	
program	requirements	through	an	in-depth	discovery	phase	including	stakeholder	design	charrettes,	
conduct	site	analysis	of	2-3	potential	placements,	outline	and	work	through	building	codes	and	
permitting	requirements,	develop	conceptual	schematics,	a	construction	budget,	and	make	a	final	
presentation	to	share	their	findings.	Upon	completion	of	this	feasibility	study,	ICG	will	be	prepared	to	
embark	on	a	capital	campaign	to	realize	the	design.	
	
Schedule		Start	May	2018.	Complete	Feb	2019.	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Goals	Addressed	by	this	project		
-	Outdoor	-	Expand	outdoor	recreation	and	other	tourism	related	to	our	outstanding	natural	amenities	
-	Sustainability	-	Develop	Ithaca	and	Tompkins	County	as	the	preeminent	Sustainability	Tourism	
destination	in	New	York	State	
-	Edutourism	-	Increase	educational	tourism	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Critical	Action	Addressed	by	this	project	–	YES	
The	UEE	Center	will	help	Tompkins	County	stake	the	claim	as	the	#1	community	for	Kids	in	Nature.	ICG	is	
already	known	locally,	and	nationally	as	a	fabulously	fun	destination	for	families	in	pursuit	of	time	
connecting	to	the	living	world.	Yet	without	a	building,	our	true	tourism	impact	is	largely	confined	to	the	
growing	season	(Ithaca	is	Winter).	The	Center	will	provide	immersive,	nature-inspired	play	and	discovery	
through	cleverly	curated,	dynamic	interactive	exhibits	year-round.		Unique,	inspired	fun	will	be	the	
visitor	experience;	outcomes	will	include	increased	positive	environmental	ethics,	healthier	childhoods,	
more	connected	families,	nostalgic	memories,	and	repeat	visits.	
	
Attendance	Information		 N/A		not	required	for	Feasibility	Study	application	 	 	
	 	
Tourism	Grants	previous	3	years	
2017	Tourism	Project:	Discovery	Docks	$14,850,	Tourism	Project:	Visitor	Navigation	$5,100	
2016		Tourism	Project:	Orientation	Signage	Project	$7,000;	Celebration:	International	Mud	Day	$1,500	
2015	Feasibility	Study:	The	Very	Hungry	Caterpillar	Story	Boardwalk	$16,000;	Celebration:	International	
Mud	Day	$1,300;	Celebration:	Festival	of	Fire	&	Ice	$1,400	
 
Feasibility	Study	applications	are	reviewed	as	multi-year	awards 	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 9 

Reviewer	Comments	on	Urban	Environmental	Education	Center	
	
Strengths	
	

1. Outdoor	tourism.		
2. A	building	would	offer	new	educational	opportunities	as	well	as	shelter.		
3. Make	ICG	more	accessible	for	tourists	year	round	
4. This	quality	of	life	enhancing	tourism	asset	is	attractive	to	local	residents	and	visitors	alike.		
5. The	Ithaca	Children's	Garden	is	an	organization	with	demonstrated	capacity,	successes,	and	

continued	growth	over	several	years.		
6. Cutting	edge	idea	with	few	examples	around	the	country,	which	could	further	capitalize	on	

increased	visibility	by	state	that	they	have	been	fostering.	
7. Uniquely	Ithaca	
8. The	overall	mission	is	good	
9. Adds	to	our	community’s	commitment	to	good	environmental	stewardship.	
10. Prepping	for	State	funding	of	the	project	

	
Weaknesses	
	

1. Low	impact	in	hotel	room	stays.	
2. Tourism	benefits,	if	yielded,	would	likely	be	regional	visitor	traffic,	as	well	as	the	opportunity	this	

asset	presents	as	an	"add-on"	tourism	attraction.	My	instinct	is	traffic	would	remain	majority	
local.	

3. A	very	large	lift	for	this	organization	
4. Concerned	about	the	scope	of	the	project	(a	little	ambitious)	-	seems	like	a	big	step	and	

wondering	if	there's	a	more	intermediate	path	-	this	is	potentially	addressed	by	feasibility.	
5. Irony	of	building	a	building	to	become	the	#1	community	for	kids	in	nature	because	Ithaca	is	

Winter.	
6. My	gut	reaction:	it's	just	missing	the	mark	for	me.	
7. Overall	ROI	is	tricky.	
8. We	have	consistently	funded	them	on	various	projects	over	the	last	several	years.	
9. Was	there	required	preliminary	research	supporting	full	study?	

 
Other	Comments	
	

1. A	building	moves	ICG	from	a	seasonal	to	year-round	attraction.	
2. Would	like	to	see	their	business	plan	and	finances.	(Note:	Feasibility	Study	applications	do	not	

currently	require	these	materials.)	
3. Next	generation	of	travelers	have	children	–	ICG	along	with	Sciencenter	and	PRI	create	critical	

mass	of	activities	to	attract	these	tourists.	 	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 10 

Synopsis Paleontological	Research	Institution	
Climate	and	Energy	
Type	Capital	Investment	Grant		
	
Agency	Annual	Operating	Budget	$2,218,754	
	
Grant	Request	$24,000	
Project	Value	$72,000	
	
Summary		
We	will	create	a	new	permanent	exhibition	at	the	Museum	of	the	Earth	that	addresses	the	issue	of	
climate	change	and	energy,	a	topic	receiving	increasing	public	attention	because	of	its	immense	impact	
on	society	and	the	environment.	Creative	graphics	plus	interactive	and	hands-on	props	will	promote	
engagement	and	discussion	about	the	connections	between	climate	change,	energy,	and	life,	both	
locally	and	globally.	The	Museum	is	a	destination	for	tourists	to	come	and	learn	about	the	local	
landscape	and	the	formation	of	our	gorges,	waterfalls,	and	lakes,	and	this	project	will	increase	the	visitor	
appeal	by	enhancing	our	permanent	exhibitions	and	extending	visitors'	learning	opportunities	to	
encompass	the	current	and	relevant	topic	of	climate	change.	
	
	
Schedule		Start	date:	12/01/2018	to	End	date/Opening:	6/28/2019	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Goals	Addressed	by	this	project		
-	Edutourism	-	Increase	educational	tourism	
-	Arts,	Culture,	Heritage	-	Develop	Ithaca	and	Tompkins	County	as	a	central	arts,	cultural	and	heritage	
tourism	destination	in	the	Finger	Lakes	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Critical	Action	Addressed	by	this	project	–	No	
	
Total	Attendance	(Current)		 	 	 23,521	 	 	 	
Out	of	County	Visitor	Attendance	(Current)		 15,524	
%	of	Current	Out	of	County	Visitors		 	 66%	 	 	
Total	Attendance	(Yr	3	Projected)	 	 24,960	 	 		
Out	of	County	Visitor	Attendance	(Yr	3	projected)	16,474	
%	of	3yr	Projected	Out	of	County	Visitors		 66%	
	
	
Tourism	Grants	previous	3	years	
2015	-	Tourism	Capital	Grant	-	$50,000;	Tourism	Project	and	Marketing	Grant	-	$6,000	(Layers);	Tourism	
Marketing	-	$1,000	(Microworlds);	ACOD	Grant	-	$40,000	(combined	museum	and	nature	center)	
2016	-	Tourism	Project	and	Marketing	Grant	-	$7,890	(Buzzsaw);	Celebrations	Grant	-	$2,000	(Darwin	
Days);	ACOD	Grant	-	$30,000	(combined	museum	and	nature	center)	
2017	-	Tourism	Project	and	Marketing	Grant	-	$3,250	(Skulls);	Tourism	Capital	Grant	-	$5,000;	Tourism	
Marketing	Grant	-	$2,800	(Mapping);	ACOD	Grant	-	$30,000	(combined	museum	and	nature	center)	
	
Can	accept	award	over	2	years?		Yes		Over	3	years?			No	
 	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 11 

Reviewer	Comments	on	Climate	and	Energy	
	
Strengths	
	

1. Since	the	most	recent	exhibit	on	climate	change	is	ten	years	old,	this	exhibit	seems	overdue.	
2. Strong	organization/strong	financials	and	ability	to	complete	project.	
3. Exhibit	content	is	timely,	relevant,	and	appeals	to	broad	audiences.		
4. completes	the	exhibit	narrative.	
5. Museum	needs	to	refresh	exhibits	and	keep	content	changing/relevant.	
6. Educational	asset	in	Tompkins	County.	
7. Great	project/mission.	
8. Museum's	reported	percentage	of	visitors	to	residents	higher	than	other	applicants.		
9. Grant	program	request	as	percentage	of	total	project	is	lower,	and	therefore,	favorable.	

	
Weaknesses	
	

1. Not	convinced	this	exhibit	will	be	a	big	draw	to	outside	visitors.	
2. Total	visitor	traffic	is	lower	than	some	other	partners,	therefore	total	exposure	opportunity	for	

program	investment	isn't	as	high/impactful.	
3. We	have	continuously	funded	projects	for	PRI,	I	can't	say	the	ROI	is	apparent.	
4. I	don't	really	see	the	fit	in	the	Tourism	strategic	plan	or	critical	actions	of	the	plan.	
5. Relatively	small	audience.	
6. Are	all	funds	for	this	secured?	

 
Other	Comments	

	
1. Like	the	idea	of	an	exhibit	on	climate	and	energy.	
2. Unclear	what	the	actual	exhibit	would	be.	The	description	was	very	vague.	
3. Very	academic	and	1950’s	feel.	Museum	needs	an	overhaul	to	create	appeal	to	children	and	to	

get	into	the	21st	century.	
4. Museum	needs	to	improve	its	marketing	and	create	excitement.	
5. Visitor	numbers	are	low	and	not	growing.	
6. Museum	does	not	create	room-nights.	

	 	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 12 

Synopsis	Sciencenter	
Build	Move	Live	Play	
Type	Capital	Investment	Grant	
	
Agency	Annual	Operating	Budget	$3,562,855	
Grant	Request	$50,000	
Project	Value	$150,000	
	
Summary	Build–Move–Live–Play	is	an	interactive	exhibition	where	visitors	immerse	themselves	in	
engineering	design	challenges.	In	this	1,000	square-foot	exhibition	visitors	learn	the	“how	to”	of	
engineering	by	experimenting	with	simple	machines,	construction	materials,	and	air	pressure.	This	
exhibition	will	be	the	Sciencenter’s	cornerstone	exhibition,	occupying	its	largest	exhibit	hall	and	serving	
as	a	signature	tourist	attraction.	Through	open	ended	exhibit	experiences,	guests	design,	build,	and	test	
their	own	creations,	while	learning	of	the	limitations	and	trade	offs	that	engineers	face	-	limited	
materials,	environmental	impacts,	resiliency.	They	will	also	learn	“why	we	build”	through	real	life	design	
problems	and	stories	of	people	who	have	tackled	real	world	problems.	Build–Move–Live–Play	lets	
guests	create	in	ways	that	fosters	creativity	and	builds	knowledge,	empathy,	and	understanding.	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Goals	Addressed	by	this	project		
-	Edutourism	-	Increase	educational	tourism	
-	Arts,	Culture,	Heritage	-	Develop	Ithaca	and	Tompkins	County	as	a	central	arts,	cultural	and	heritage	
tourism	destination	in	the	Finger	Lakes	
	
Schedule	Planning	/	Design	by.	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Critical	Action	Addressed	by	this	project	-	No	
	
Total	Attendance	(Current)		 	 	 109,866	
Out	of	County	Visitor	Attendance	(Current)		 47,096	
%	of	Current	Out	of	County	Visitors		 	 43%	
Total	Attendance	(Yr	3	Projected)		 	 108,667	
Out	of	County	Visitor	Attendance	(Yr	3	projected)	46,727	
%	of	3yr	Projected	Out	of	County	Visitors		 43%	
	
	
Tourism	Grants	previous	3	years	
2015	Capital	-	Sagan	Planet	Walk	-	$25,000;	Curiosity	Corner	-	$18,327,	ACOD	$17,000	
2016	Capital	-	Sustainability	Gallery	and	Garden	-	$48,115;	Project	Grant	-	Make	Some	Noise!	Sound	
exhibits	-	$23,000;	ACOD	-	$40,000	($20k/year)	
2017	Capital	-	Get	Fit	Gallery	-	$20,000;	Project	Grant	-	Science	Playground	-	$18,000 
	
Can	accept	award	over	2	years?		Yes		Over	3	years?		Yes



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 13 

Reviewer	Comments	on	Build	Move	Live	Play	
	
	
Strengths	
	

1. Sciencenter	has	some	of	the	greatest	demonstrated	capacity	of	all	tourism	partners.	Project	will	
last	approximately	ten	years	from	completion	date,	so	through	2030.	

2. The	Sciencenter	understands	their	visitor	base	and	quantifies	it	perhaps	better	than	any	other	
applicants/tourism	partners.		

3. This	project	brings	a	new	cornerstone	exhibit	that	is	"trendy"	and	relevant	in	today's	youth	
education	curriculum.	

4. Very	reliable	in-house	team	and	impressive	design	manager	contracted	for	exhibit.	
5. One	of	the	only	organizations	that	focuses	exclusively	on	kids	and	this	addresses	a	growing	need	

to	reach	kids	around	STEM	education.	
6. Reputation	of	doing	quality	projects.	
7. Important	new	exhibit	for	central	exhibit.	
8. All	funding	in	hand.	
9. Great	for	community.	

	
Weaknesses	
	

1. How	are	they	justifying	the	tourism	the	exhibit	will	attract?	
2. Their	target	is	within	a	90	mile	radius,	which	does	not	fill	hotel	beds.	
3. Visitor	base	is	majority	local	and	regional,	few	from	beyond	75	miles.	Growth	in	tourism	

specifically	from	this	investment	will	be	minimal,	based	on	total	investment	over	10	years/total	
growth.	

4. A	large	chunk	of	the	request	is	to	cover	staff	time.	
5. The	Sciencenter	just	had	a	very	successful	capital	campaign	and	raised	nearly	$4M	plus	grant	

funding	from	NYS	Market	NY	tourism	$$.	Can	this	tourism	partner	demonstrate	the	need	that	
others	have?	

6. Timeline	to	actual	opening	of	this	exhibit	is	too	far	away	(2.5	years);	other	partners	likely	need	
this	funding	sooner.	

7. Not	a	critical	action	in	the	strategic	plan.	
8. A	lot	of	funding	over	the	years,	need	to	really	look	at	ROI.	

 
Other	Comments	

1. Very	interactive	exhibit.	
2. High	visitorship	numbers	and	growing.	
3. Want	to	see	a	pass	for	all	the	kids	activities	in	the	area	–	this	works	well	in	other	cities.	
4. Good	that	this	exhibit	is	NOT	about	sustainability.	
5. Prefer	to	give	more	funding	to	newer	things.	

	 	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 14 

Synopsis State	Theatre	of	Ithaca,	Inc.	
State	Theatre	Accessibility	and	Sound	Improvements	
Type	Capital	Investment	Grant		
	
Agency	Annual	Operating	Budget	$1,025,386	
Grant	Request	$30,000	
Project	Value		$90,000	
	
Summary		
	
Schedule		June	2018	–	project	starts,	renovations	begin;	August	2018	–	renovations	and	any	inspections	
completed;	project	ends;	September	2018	–	fall	season	commences	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Goals	Addressed	by	this	project		
-	Arts,	Culture,	Heritage	-	Develop	Ithaca	and	Tompkins	County	as	a	central	arts,	cultural	and	heritage	
tourism	destination	in	the	Finger	Lakes	
-	Downtown	Ithaca	-	Enhance	downtown	Ithaca	as	a	hub	of	visitor	activity	
-	Marketing	-	Maximize	the	effectiveness	of	destination	marketing,	advertising,	and	public	relations	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Critical	Action	Addressed	by	this	project	–	Yes	
Our	strategy	responds	to	critical	action	#27	:	“Promote	marketing	coordination	to	facilitate	innovative	
marketing	partnerships	between	tourism	attractions	and	venues”.	In	New	York	and	Philadelphia,	it	is	
easier	for	those	needing	accommodations	to	find	them;	Ithaca	should	provide	a	comparable	experience.			
In	the	spirit	of	creating	ease	in	access	for	out	of	town	visitors,	we	will	identify	and	partner	with	ADA	
compliant	hotels	and	restaurants	in	the	area,	such	as	the	Marriott.		We	will	explore	ticket	packages	and	
create	a	list	for	our	patrons	to	access	through	the	ticket	center	or	website,	creating	marketing	
partnerships	that	will	offer	more	enticements	for	visitors.	
	
Total	Attendance	(Current)		 	 	 	 51,171	 	 	 	
Out	of	County	Visitor	Attendance	(Current)		 	 19,445	 	 	
%	of	Current	Out	of	County	Visitors		 	 	 38%	 	 	
Total	Attendance	(Yr	3	Projected)	 	 	 56,500	 	 		
Out	of	County	Visitor	Attendance	(Yr	3	projected)		 21,470	 	
%	of	3yr	Projected	Out	of	County	Visitors		 	 38%	 	
	
Tourism	Grants	previous	3	years	
2015	–	ACOD	$27,000	
2016	-	Feasibility	Study	for	Lobby	Expansion	-	$9,000,	ACOD	$25,000	
2017	–	ACOD	$25,000	
	
	
Can	accept	award	over	2	years?	Yes			Over	3	years?			No	
	
  



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 15 

Reviewer	Comments	on	State	Theatre	Accessibility	and	Sound	Improvements	
	
Strengths	
	

1. Clear	and	concise	ask	to	accommodate	a	group	of	people	often	overlooked.	
2. Accessibility	is	an	important	issue	to	ensure	visitor	comfort;	project	to	improve	visitor	

experience.	
3. Important	for	tourism	assets	to	be	ADA	friendly	for	both	tourists	and	county	residents,	improves	

inclusive	tourism.	
4. Reality	is	that	ADA	guests	don't	travel	alone,	one	ADA	seat	is	equivalent	to	3	or	4	tickets	sold.	
5. I	know	there	is	a	focus	by	the	CVB	regarding	accessibility	tourism,	we	have	many	older	tourism	

assets	that	need	this	update.	
6. While	this	only	directly	impacts	a	small	percentage	of	population,	I	think	it's	critical	for	our	

community	to	be	as	accessible	as	possible	hence	the	high	ratings.	
7. makes	us	more	inclusive	
8. Barrier	Free	a	must	
9. State	is	a	theater	that	truly	brings	in	visitors	and	truly	fills	beds;	attracts	many	tourists,	and	most	

people	continue	to	spend	money	before	and	after	shows	in	our	community.	
10. Demonstrated	capacity	to	implement	projects.	
11. The	State	Theatre	has	more	confidence	in	their	visitor	data	and	attraction	of	visitors	from	

outside	the	area	than	most	tourism	partners.	
12. Reasonable	leverage	being	paired	with	this	request	from	private	donors,	grant	funders,	and	in-

kind	contributions	from	builders.	Timeline	for	implementation	and	project	completion	is	quick--
9/18.	

13. Strong	financials	-	State	a	strong	organization.	
14. Hard	to	put	an	actual	number	on	ROI	but	I	think	it's	a	good	project	to	support.	

	
Weaknesses	
	

1. How	many	of	our	local	hotels	are	fully	ADA	compliant	and	would	be	good	to	describe	local	
partners?	

2. Total	increase	in	visitation/tourism	from	this	specific	project	is	not	great;	however,	the	value	of	
accessibility	as	a	long	term	asset	the	theatre	and	community	can	market	is	higher.	

3. Lack	of	ROI	for	this	project.	
 
Other	Comments	

	
	 	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 16 

Synopsis The	History	Center	in	Tompkins	County	
Tompkins	Center	for	History	and	Culture	Build	Out 
Type	Capital	Investment	Grant	
	
Agency	Annual	Operating	Budget	$385,000	
Grant	Request	$100,000	
Project	Value	$6,314,000	
	
Summary		
	The	Tompkins	Center	for	History	and	Culture	(TCHC)	will	be	open	in	2019	on	the	Ithaca	Commons	as	a	
collective	of	history,	heritage	and	cultural	organizations.	The	location	on	the	Commons	will	offer	a	
vibrant,	centrally-located	space	that	will	become	a		cultural	hub	of	our	community	contributing	to	a	
remarkable	visitor	experience	and	inspiring	our	local	community.	The	involvement	of	the	Convention	
and	Visitors	Bureau’s	downtown	Visitors	Center	ensures	that	this	will	be	a	destination.	Also	represented	
will	be	Wharton	Studio	Museum,	Historic	Ithaca,	Ithaca	Aviation	Heritage	Foundation,	Dorothy	Cotton	
Institute,	Community	Arts	Partnership,	the	Sustainability	Center	and	the	Discovery	Trail.	The	partners	
are	in	the	final	stages	of	signing	a	memorandum	of	agreement	that	covers	a	wide	range	of	governance	
issues.	
	
Schedule		Construction	is	expected	to	start	June	2018	with	a	December	2018	completion	date.	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Goals	Addressed	by	this	project		
-	Downtown	Ithaca	-	Enhance	downtown	Ithaca	as	a	hub	of	visitor	activity	
-	Arts,	Culture,	Heritage	-	Develop	Ithaca	and	Tompkins	County	as	a	central	arts,	cultural	and	heritage	
tourism	destination	in	the	Finger	Lakes	
-	Visitor	Services	-	Provide	effective	visitor	services	and	customer	service	at	points	of	visitor	contact	
	
Strategic	Tourism	Plan	Critical	Action	Addressed	by	this	project	–	Yes	
	
Total	Attendance	(Current)		 	 	 25,000	 	 	 	
Out	of	County	Visitor	Attendance	(Current)		 10,000	 	
%	of	Current	Out	of	County	Visitors		 	 40%	 	
Total	Attendance	(Yr	3	Projected)	 	 42,000	 		
Out	of	County	Visitor	Attendance	(Yr	3	projected)	23,000	 	
%	of	3yr	Projected	Out	of	County	Visitors		 55%	 	
	
	
Tourism	Grants	previous	3	years	
Intermediary	for	the	past	few	years	for	Celtic	Games	awards.	
2015:	ACOD	$27,000	
2016:	"Tompkins	County	Heritage	Tourism:	Branding,	Developing	and	Marketing.",	ACOD	$20,000	
2017:	$35,500	Tompkins	County	Heritage	Education	Center	(STI	grant);	$25,000	Heritage	Education	
Center	Construction	drawings	(Tourism	Capital	Grant),	ACOD	$20,000	
	2018:	$28,000	Tompkins	Center	for	History	and	Culture	(TCHC)	Project	Management	and	Project	
Website	Support	(STI	grant);	$100,000	TCHC	code-related	renovations	(STI	grant)	
	
Can	accept	award	over	2	years?			Yes		Over	3	years?			Yes	
	 	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 17 

Reviewer	Comments	on	Tompkins	Center	for	History	and	Culture	Build	Out 
	
Strengths	
	

1. Provides	vehicle	for	CVB	to	directly	interact	with	visitors.	
2. Provides	a	centralized	formal	center	of	tourism.	
3. Could	provide	a	central	location	for	community	events	(in	the	evenings).	
4. Strong	community	support,	great	partners.	
5. Tied	to	Visitor	Center	critical.	
6. Could	be	a	strong	anchor	for	tourism	in	downtown	Ithaca,	especially	with	the	CVB	partnership.	
7. Heritage	tourism	a	priority	on	the	2020	plan.	
8. Strong	visitor	entry	experience.	
9. Good	leadership	team.	
10. Builds	on	past	grant.	
11. Downtown	draw.	

	
Weaknesses	
	

1. It's	unclear	to	me	how	this	center	would	directly	increase	visitor	stays	and	tourism	revenues.	
2. Where	is	the	rationale	for	the	projected	32,000	visitors	in	2019?	
3. It	is	still	unclear	how	the	exhibits	will	be	truly	interactive	and	engaging	
4. Although	this	scores	high,	my	gut	reaction	is	lower	-	I'm	concerned	about	the	"unknowns"	-	large	

project	=	unknowns!		However,	I	think	this	is	a	critical	project	and	in	our	wheelhouse.	
5. Concerned	with	operating	hours,	seemed	vague,	do	not	want	a	"wine	center"	situation	where	

visitors	go	in	and	museum	part	is	closed,	even	worse	if	CVB	open	and	museum	closed.	
6. Concerned	about	staffing	needs.	

 
Other	Comments	
	

1. Can’t	fund	them	forever,	concerned	about	operating	business	plan.	
2. Want	to	see	Cornell	and	Ithaca	College	have	a	strong	presence.	
3. Needs	21st	century	vision	and	appeal.	

	 	



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 18 

 
 
 
INFORMATION FOR REVIEWERS 
 
Tourism Capital Grants program fund status 
 
As of March 2018, there is $206,000 available in the program’s fund for grants. 
 
What is on the horizon?  
 
This program has a single round annually. 
 
2018 is a highly competitive year. I expect there will continue to be strong applicant interest for 
the next several years.  Most of the feasibility studies we have funded over the past several years 
are likely to generate eligible capital projects in the next several years. 
 
 
Other Information 
 
The Review Committee completes a scoring grid online in Apricot. The averaged results from all 
the reviewers’ scores helps guide the reviewers’ discussion; it is not a point system to determine 
the awards. Reviewers also submit up to three strengths and three weaknesses for each 
application. 
 
Also enclosed are: 
• History of the Tourism Capital grants awards since inception (by recipient) 
• Criteria for Grants from the application guide 
• The review committee’s Conflict of Interest Policy 
• (There are no past multi-year grants that affect the current budget) 
 
 
 
TCAD Tourism Capital Grants Review Committee members:  
 
April 2018: 
• Anna Kelles (TC Legislature) 
• Jennifer Tavares (STP/TCAD) – recused Tompkins center for History and Culture 
• Kara Pass (TCAD) – online review only; recused Sciencenter 
• Kelli Cartmill (STP) 
• Ken Jupiter (STP) chair 
• Steve Hugo (STP) 
 
  



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 19 

Detailed History of Awards 2003 to 2017 (2 pages) 

 

Tourism Capital Grants Awardees 2003-2017 Year Award Project Value Type
1 Cayuga Nature Center Feas 2008 13,500 13,500 f
2 Cayuga Nature Center 1 2009 100,000 357,752 c
3 Cayuga Nature Center 2 2011 100,000 450,000 c
4 Cayuga Nature Center: Cayuga Lake Past and Present Exhibit 2014 40,000 241,180 c
5 Cayuga Nature Center - Smith Woods 2017 5000 80000 c

258,500

6 Center for Transformative Action (Floating Classroom) - Study 2017 5,500 12360 f

7 City of Ithaca: Lake Street Public Park Enhancement 2015 20,000 240,000 c
8 City Ithaca Skate Park 2011 60,000 435,340 c
9 City Ithaca Youth Bureau - Rink 2017 50000 1007486 c

130,000

10 CSMA: 3rd  Floor performance space 2013 8,000 8,160 f
11 CSMA: 3rd Floor Performance Space Phase 1 2014 55,000 165,400 c
12 CSMA - 3rd	Floor	Phase	2 2017 16500 85970 c

79,500

13 CWT Phase 2 2005 5,000 115,000 c
14 CWTI -- Stewart Park Rehab Action Plan 2008 15,000 15,000 f
15 CWT Cayuga Waterfront Trail: panels and  Overlook 2012 20,000 76,500 c

40,000

16 Dorothy Cotton Institute 2010 7,500 7,500 f

17 Downtown Ithaca Alliance (Conf Ctr) 2016 40,000 44,000 c

18 Finger Lakes Land Trust: Emerald Necklace enhancement 2012 20,000 76,550 c
19 Finger Lakes Land Trust - Trail 2017 10000 51700 c

30,000

20 Hangar Theatre 2003 9,000 9,000 f
21 Hangar Theatre 2008 84,000 84,000 c
22 Hangar Theatre Capital 2009 100,000 3,100,000 c
23 Hangar Theatre: Hangar for All Seasons Phase 2 2013 5,000 9,800 f
24 Hangar - Dickens 2017 20000 107500 c

218,000

25 Historic Ithaca - State Theatre Phase 2 2003 125,000 720,300 c

26 History Center 2006 10,000 10,000 f
27 History Center: Feasibility of partnership with IAHF/Tommy 2013 7,500 23,000 f
28 History Center: Feasibility partner Ithaca Motion Picture Project 2013 7,500 23,000 f
29 The History Center - Heritage Education Center 2017 25000 86000 c

50,000

30 Ithaca Children's Garden 2009 14,800 500,000 c
31 Ithaca Children’s Garden: Edible Forest Garden Phase 1 2014 34,000 102,809 c
32 Ithaca Children’s Garden: Very Hungry Caterpillar Study 2015 16,000 16,170 f

64,800

33 Ithaca Farmers Market 2005 10,000 51,630 c
34 Ithaca Farmers Market Bathroom Trailer 2015 5,000 31,000 c

15,000



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 20 

 

35 Ithaca United Soccer Club (Fields) 2016 5,000 9,995 f

36 Kitchen Theatre Feas 1 2008 13,000 13,000 f
37 Kitchen Theatre Capital 2009 100,000 1,202,800 c
38 Kitchen Theatre Feas 2 2009 21,000 21,000 c

134,000

39 PRI Museum of the Earth 10 th Anniversary  Museum Enhancements 2013 32,000 241,180 c
40 PRI MoTE Smithsonian exhibits 2015 50,000 392,445 c
41 PRI- Museum of Earth- Building Expansion 2003 125,000 7,000,000 c
42 PRI/MOTE Climate Exhibit 2010 50,000 150,000 c

257,000

43 Sciencenter - Get Fit! 2017 20000 150000 c
44 Sciencenter (Sustainability) 2016 48,115 144,347 c
45 Sciencenter Golf 2003 25,000 150,000 c
46 Sciencenter Marcellus Drilling Exhibit 2011 50,000 220,000 c
47 Sciencenter Ocean 2005 20,000 90,000 c
48 Sciencenter Outdoor 2006 60,000 200,000 c
49 Sciencenter: Expansion Live Animal Gallery 2012 30,000 120,000 c
50 Sciencenter: Mini-Golf Construction 2014 25,000 307,400 c
51 Sciencenter: prototyping of Galaxy Golf 2013 12,500 29,020 f
52 Sciencenter: Sagan Walk Expansion 2015 25,000 110,000 c

315,615

53 State Theatre  (Lobby) 2016 9,000 15,200 f
54 State Theatre bathroom expansion and improvements 2012 3,780 3,780 f
55 State Theatre bathroom expansion and renovation 2013 42,000 267,000 c

54,780

56 Stewart Park Building Study 2010 15,000 15,000 f
57 Stewart Park Landscape Rehab Study 2012 10,000 17,000 f
58 Stewart Park Rehabilitation Phase 1 Building Improvements  2013 70,500 415,100 f
59 Stewart Park Buildings Five Year Priority Plan 2015 20,000 39,490 f
60 Friends of Stewart Park - Pavilion 2017 25000 287280 c

140,500

61 Tompkins Planning: Cayuga Lake Blueway Trail: Design Study 2014 10,000 18,000 f
62 Tompkins County Planning (Blueway) 2016 33,480 121,343 c

43,480

63 Wharton/Ithaca Motion Picture Project 2009 5,500 5,500 f
64 Wharton Studio Museum (Exhibits) 2016 9,050 9,050 f

14,550

65 Wine Center Feasibility Ph1 2004 5,000 10,000 f
66 Wine Center Feasibility Ph 2 2005 7,500 7,500 f
67 Wine Center 2007 160,000 502,220 c

172,500

Total 2,201,225 20,642,257

42 Capital Projects Awards Median Average
31,000 45,260

25 Feasibility Studies Awards Median Average
9,000 12,000



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 21 

 Criteria for the Grant…from the application guide: 
The Tourism Capital Grants Program focuses on major visitor-generating projects such as 
theaters, museums, and other major cultural and recreational attractions. The funds can be used 
for:  
• Design, renovation, and new building projects  
• Investments in unique permanent (minimum 5-year life) installations such as exhibits  
• Feasibility studies of potential capital projects  

 
The fund cannot be used to refinance existing debt, or for operating expenses. 
 
Eligibility  
 
Applicant Eligibility: large, tourist/visitor generating not-for-profit or public-purpose projects. 
Examples of projects include the Sciencenter Touch Tank permanent exhibit, the Hangar Theater 
renovations for winter operations, the Museum of the Earth new building, and visitor amenities 
for the Cayuga Waterfront Trail.  The organization must track where visitors are from in order to 
establish tourism impact.  The organization must market to visitors beyond Tompkins County. 
 
Project Eligibility 
A.  Capital Investment Projects:  New construction and renovation projects are eligible.  The 
project may provide expansion or renovation to existing facilities, or may be a totally new 
facility.  The fund will usually participate at the $25,000 level or higher.  Funds may contribute 
up to one third of eligible costs that include: 
• Acquisition of land 
• Acquisition, construction, and renovation of buildings 
• Acquisition of furnishings, equipment, permanent exhibitions, and other capital 

improvements designed to serve or promote tourism over a minimum of five years 
• Design services for the project 
 
B.  Feasibility Studies:  Studies should potentially lead to a capital investment as described 
above. Grants may fund up to 100% of a feasibility study. Eligible projects include:  
• Concept level design and cost estimates 
• Tourism plan for a capital project 
• Business plan for a capital project 
• Not eligible: fundraising feasibility study 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
A.  Capital Investment Projects: 
The application must demonstrate  
• Financial feasibility of the project 
• Organizational capacity and commitment to make the project a success 
• Likelihood of  

o increased visitors to the facility and/or 
o improved visitor experience and/or 
o visitors increasing their length of stay in order to visit the facility 

 



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 22 

B.  Feasibility Studies: 
The application must demonstrate  
• Preliminary research that supports proceeding to a full scale feasibility study 
• Organizational commitment to the project being studied, including evidence of investment 
• Possibility of  

o increased visitors to the facility and/or 
o improved visitor experience and/or 
o visitors increasing their length of stay in order to visit the facility 

Evaluation criteria for all applications include: 

• Organizational capacity and commitment to carry out the project 
• Likelihood of the project to increase or improve tourism over five years 
• Project/organization role in the Tompkins County tourism industry 
• Benefits/cost -- return on investment 
• Value of project to community 
• Contribution to the County’s Strategic Tourism Plan 

 

  



Memo to STP Board re: 2018 Tourism Capital Grants 
Preparation for STP Meeting: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 

Page 23 

 
Tourism Capital Grant Review Committee 

Conflict of Interest Policy 
 
 
The Tourism Capital Grant Review Committee members (hereafter called members) are 
encouraged to play active roles in their communities by serving as board members or otherwise 
being involved with a wide spectrum of organizations. This means that, from time to time, 
potential conflicts of interest or the appearance of such conflicts will inevitably arise. It is the 
committee’s policy to deal with such conflicts in as open and appropriate a way as possible. 
 
Conflicting involvements include but are not limited to the following: members serving as board 
members of applicant organizations, immediate family of members serving as board members of 
organizations affected by the committee’s decisions, members or their immediate family being 
employed by or doing business with such organizations.  Serving on an advisory board to an 
applicant organization should be disclosed, but is generally not considered a conflict of interest 
that requires recusal.  In rare instances, working for an organization that has made a major 
contribution to an applicant organization may be considered a conflict of interest.  
 
In case of such conflicts or the appearance thereof, such members are expected to disclose the 
conflict at the earliest practicable time. Such disclosure shall be made a matter of record.  Once 
such a disclosure has been made, the remaining committee members will determine whether or 
not there is a potential conflict of interest. Should it be so considered, the member involved shall:  
• abstain from voting and shall not participate in the discussion other than to answer specific 

factual questions that may be raised by other members. 
• not attempt to exert his or her personal influence with respect to the matter, either at or 

outside the meeting.  
• be prepared to excuse himself or herself from the room while the matter is discussed and 

voted on if asked to do so by the committee or committee chair. 
• If the member involved is a paid staff of an organization with a current application, that 

member should recuse themselves from all meetings and discussions of applications during 
that funding cycle of grant awards and at least for six months. 

 
The minutes of such meeting shall reflect that a disclosure was made and that the member having 
a possible conflict abstained from voting. 
 
All candidates for membership on the committee should be advised of this policy prior to 
assuming their responsibilities as members. 
 



Spring 2018 Community Celebrations Grant Requests and Award Recommendations

Applicant Organization Celebration Name Municip.

Expected 

Attendance

Event Start 

Date

Event End 

Date

Amount 

Requested

Amount 

Recomme Committee Comments

T‐burg Chamber T‐burg Porchfest

Village of T‐

burg 800 06/16/2018 06/16/2018 $500  $500 

The committee found that this applicant has 

historically been successful with similar events.  The 

Dryden Lake Festival, Inc. Dryden Lake Festival

Town of 

Dryden 750 07/28/2018 07/28/2018 $1,800  $1,600 

The committee funded this based on the amount in 

the budget worksheet which did not match the 

amount in Apricot.

Ithaca Rotary Club Charitable Trust

Ithaca Fourth of July Community 

Fireworks City of Ithaca 10000 07/03/2018 07/03/2018 $2,000  $0 

The committee deemed this an ineligible use of funds 

as it is related to a fireworks event ‐ which is listed as 

an ineligible expense in the grant guidelines.

Ithaca Children's Garden International Mud Day City of Ithaca 750 06/30/2018 06/30/2018 $1,950  $1,950 

The committee found that this applicant has 

historically been successful with similar events. 

Southside Community Center, Inc. Kwanzaa 2018 City of Ithaca 175 12/27/2018 12/27/2018 $1,600  $1,600 

The committee thought this event could use better 

promotion throughout the community. 

Groton Girl Scout Troop 41432, 

C/O Village of Groton Groton Community Night

Village of 

Groton 450 08/07/2018 08/07/2018 $1,000  $1,000 

The committee determined it was important to 

engage the children of this community with a 

celebration of this type.

Triphammer Arts Inc. Watermusic/Dancing on the Trail City of Ithaca 750 07/14/2018 07/15/2018 $2,000  $2,000 

The committee was enthusiastic about this event but 

unclear why the location changed to Stewart Park.

Ithaca Asia Association/Social 

Ventures Community Voices Project City of Ithaca 150 05/11/2018 05/11/2018 $3,000  $0 

The committee determined that this funding request 

did not meet the criteria for a community 

celebration. The application and budget were 

unclear. The request for funds exceeded the eligible 

amount. 

Multicultural Resource Center First Peoples Festival City of Ithaca 2500 06/29/2018 06/29/2018 $1,750  $1,750 

The committee found that this applicant has 

historically been successful with similar events and 

has successfully promoted this event to a wide 

audience.

Child Development Council Playdate in the Park City of Ithaca 1500 06/05/2018 06/05/2018 $1,000  $850 

The committee had difficulty determining whether 

this application met the criteria for a celebration; 

they'd like the applicant to find a way to celebrate 

the carousel.

CCETC/Get Your Green Back Treasure Hunt on the Re‐Use Trail City of Ithaca 1800 10/01/2018 10/31/2018 $1,912  $0 

The committee determined that this funding request 

did not meet the criteria for a community 

celebration. This application may be a better fit for 

the Tourism Marketing and Advertising Grant 

program.

Center for Transformative 

Action/Groundswell Project IWR Community Picnic at the Park City of Ithaca 500 07/21/2018 07/21/2018 $680  $680 

The committee felt this event could use better 

promotion and clarity about the event's focus.

Varna Community Association 2018 GeoWhiz City of Ithaca 1200 11/10/2018 11/10/2018 $500  $500 

The committee found that this applicant has 

historically been successful with similar events that 

were well organized and enjoyable.

No Mas Lagrimas

Art in Community & Latino 

Multicultural Festival City of Ithaca 250 08/01/2018 09/30/2018 $2,000  $1,200 

The committee felt this event could use better 

promotion and was unclear how partners collaborate 

on this event.

Newfield Old Home Days 

Committee/Town of Newfield Newfield Old Home Days

Town of 

Newfield 1300 07/27/2018 07/28/2018 $2,000  $2,000 

The committee found that this applicant has 

historically been successful with similar events.

T‐burg Chamber of Commerce T‐burg Winterfest

Village of T‐

burg 1200 12/01/2018 12/01/2018 $1,000  $1,000 

The committee was happy to see an event planned 

for winter. The committee asks the applicant to 

improve the clarity of its budget proposal.

Town of Groton

10th Annual Verne Morton 

Memorial Photography Show & 

Contest

Town of 

Groton 300 08/24/2018 08/25/2018 $700  $700 

The committee found that this applicant has 

historically been successful with similar events

Historic Ithaca, Inc. 2018 TC Walk and Talks

Town of 

Lansing 425 06/30/2018 08/25/2018 $1,000  $1,000 

The committee was unclear about the locations of 

the events planned. Some on the committee were 

familiar with events that may compete with this one 

for the same audience on the same weekend.

Ithaca Aviation Heritage 

Foundation

Tommy Centennial Flight 

Celebration

Town of 

Lansing 1000 09/29/2018 09/29/2018 $2,000  $2,000 

The committee determined that this application 

clearly met the definition of a community 

celebration.

State Theatre of Ithaca, Inc. 90th Birthday Celebration City of Ithaca 1600 12/06/2018 12/08/2018 $2,000  $0 

The committee determined that this event was 

ineligible because it is not "free and open to the 

public" as specified in the grant guidelines.

Enfield Community Council, Inc. Enfield Harvest Festival

Town of 

Enfield 650 09/29/2018 09/29/2018 $2,000  $2,000 

The committee found that this applicant has 

historically been successful with similar events.

Southside Community Center, Inc. Juneteenth 2018 City of Ithaca 1200 06/16/2018 06/16/2018 $3,000  $1,000 

The committee determined some aspects of the 

proposed budget were not eligible uses of the grant 

funding (such as merchandise for sale). The 

committee thought the event should happen on June 

19 or perhaps another day that commemorates 

emancipation. The request for funds exceeded the 

eligible amount.

Danby Community Council Civil War Encampment

Town of 

Danby 500 06/22/2018 06/24/2018 $1,400  $1,400 

The committee determined that this application 

clearly met the definition of a community 

celebration. The County Historian indicated she can 

provided information on soldiers from Danby. The 

committee felt it was important to promote this 

event countywide.

Requests / 

Awards $36,792  $24,730 

Available $36,590  $36,590 

Difference ($202) $11,860 

Page 1, 4/16/2018



2

ARTICLE ONE: NAME AND STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

Section 1. Name. The name of this organization shall be the Tompkins County 
Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB). 

Section 2. Organizational   The Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board is 
Authority.   authorized by and operates pursuant to Resolution 339 of 1998 

of the Tompkins County Legislature and subsequent 
resolutions relating to membership and function of the STPB. 

ARTICLE TWO: ORGANIZATION PURPOSES 

Section 1. Powers and Duties.   The purposes of the Tompkins County Strategic Tourism
Planning Board (hereinafter referred to as the STPB) shall be: 

1. To advise the appropriate committee of the Tompkins
County Legislature, as well as the full Tompkins County 
Legislature, on all aspects of tourism development in 
Tompkins County. 

2. To review and evaluate the activities of all entities
receiving funds from the Tompkins County Room 
Occupancy Tax and to make recommendations to the 
entities receiving those funds as well as the Tompkins 
County Legislature in respect to their most appropriate 
and effective use. This includes the oversight of Tourism 
Grant Programs in place to assist events and programs of 
interest to local residents in attracting a broader audience 
from outside the County. 

3. To develop a tourism policy for review and adoption by
the Tompkins County Legislature. The policy shall be 
developed with input from members of the community 
who are interested in and informed about local tourism 
development,and shall address all issues raised by reports 
and information pertinent to all aspects of tourism 
development. 

4. To advise the Tompkins County Legislature, pursuant to
the above clauses, on the allocation of proceeds from the 
Tompkins County Room Occupancy Tax. 

NHelmholdt
Highlight



1

Tompkins County Tourism Promotional Funding History 

The Enactment of Tompkins County Hotel Room Occupancy Tax Law: 
The State of New York  Assembly affirmed in 1978 and again in 1981- “The legislature 
hereby finds and declares that the promotion, attraction, stimulation, development and 
expansion of tourist travel, resort, and vacation business are vital and necessary concerns of 
the people this state since such travel and vacation business forms an important part of its 
economy”.(Economic Development Law/ 5A:160) 

On February 10, 1986, the New York State Senate-Assembly approved a home rule tax law  
(a bottom-up law that has to be requested by the County, but approved by the State), in 
regards to the imposition of taxes on rentals of hotel or motel rooms in Tompkins County, at 
a tax rate not to exceed 3%. This Local Law is known as the Tompkins County Hotel Room 
Occupancy Tax Law. The intent of this local law was to enhance the general economy of 
Tompkins County, its cities, towns and villages through promotion of tourist activities, 
conventions, trade shows, special events and other directly related and supporting activities. 

Permitted use of room tax: 

EXCERPT FROM LOCAL LAW, AUTHORIZED BY STATE 

“12.   Disposition of Revenues:  All revenues resulting from the 
imposition of the tax under this local law shall be paid into the treasury of the 
County, credited to and deposited in the General Fund of the County, thereafter 
to be allocated for tourism and convention development; except however, that 
the County is hereby authorized to retain up to a maximum of ten percent (10%) 
of such revenue to defer the necessary expenses of the County in administering 
the tax. The revenue derived from the tax, after deducting the amount provided 
for administering such tax, as so authorized by this local law, shall be allocated 
to enhance the general economy of Tompkins county, its cities, towns, and 
villages, through promotion of tourist activities, conventions, trade shows, 
special events and other directly related and supporting activities.” 

More History 

The request for the implementation of the Occupancy tax originated from the Innkeepers 
Association and the Chamber of Commerce. The Chamber of Commerce and the County 
Board of Representatives started the tourism promotion partnership in 1986. The Chamber 
established the Convention and Visitors Bureau and the County enacted the room tax to fund 
the Bureau. A 2% room occupancy tax was approved by the County Legislature on February 
10, 1986 , and enacted on January 1, 1987. In 1989, the room tax was increased to 3%. 



2

It should be noted that originally, neither the bed and breakfasts nor the Statler Hotel were 
included at first. At the request of the bed & breakfasts, they were included in 19XX, and the 
Statler was included in 19XX. 

Advisory Committees to Tompkins County Government: 
The  Tompkins County Advisory Board on Tourism Development (ABTD) was created by 
the Tompkins County Board of Representatives in October 1989 in order to advise county 
government on issues related to tourism development and to guide the allocation of proceeds 
from the Tompkins County Room Occupancy Tax which was 3% at that time. The ABTD 
membership consisted of these representatives:  hotel/motel industry (2), restaurant industry, 
Cornell University, Ithaca College, Bed & Breakfast industry, Chamber of Commerce, At-
Large (2) and the arts, culture, education and community attractions (4) ( 1 per category 
unless indicated otherwise) 

Use of funds for 1989 – 1991 was allocated as follows: 
• 76 ½ % of occupancy tax funds for the CVB
• 8 ½ % went to the Finger Lakes Association
• 15% to tourism development grants,
• After County administration costs were subtracted, which were not to exceed 10%.

In 1998 the ABTD was restructured into the Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning 
Board (STPB), which first met in January 1999. The objectives of the STPB are to continue 
to guide county legislators on tourism issues, tourism development and room tax revenue 
allocations. The STPB increased in size to reflect the local community, and is currently 
comprised of 18 voting members and 7 non-voting ex-officios.  

Voting Members 
2 Lodging representatives  
1 Agriculture representative
1 Recreation representative
4 Arts & Culture representatives 
1 Cornell University representative 
1 Ithaca College representative 
1 Tompkins Cortland Community College representative 
7 At-large representatives (to possibly include travel, restaurant, 
retail media/communications, marketing industry representation)

Non-Voting Members 
1 County Legislator 
1 Tompkins County Chamber of Commerce representative
1 Convention and Visitors Bureau representative 
1 Governmental Transportation representative 



3

1 Tompkins County Area Development representative 
1 Downtown Ithaca Alliance representative 
1 Community Arts Partnership representative 

From Marketing to Product Development: 
In 2002, the Tompkins County Legislature (Board of Representatives) proposed a change in 
the local law (hotel room occupancy tax law), to increase the room occupancy tax from 3% 
up to 5%. The County Legislature also proposed that this additional 2% room tax was to be 
used to develop and enhance tourism infrastructure and product in five specific areas: 

Tourism Development Grants: 
See detailed list. 

Capital Project Grants: 
These grants focus on major visitor-generating projects, and can be used in the areas of: 

• feasibility studies of potential capital projects
• seed money or one-time investments
• ongoing debt funding of building projects

Tompkins County Area Development (TCAD) serves as administrator for these funds. 

Sustain Cultural Organizations: 
By stabilizing cultural organizations, they will be able to continue to grow their programs as 
well as develop more collaborative efforts toward becoming a primary draw to the County 
for visitors, new residents, new businesses and residents. These grants focus on providing 
consultants, general operating support and marketing support for performing and visual arts 
organizations and other non-profit visitor generating organizations such as the Discovery 
Trail museum partners. 

The Community Arts Partnership (CAP) serves as administrator for these funds. 

Beautification, Signage, and Public Art: 
The goal of this program is to beautify our communities so that they are welcoming to 
visitors- especially at gateways, as well as provide way-finding signage throughout the 
County to attractions of interest to visitors. The majority of these funds are used for 
beautification. These funds will be used for a program of planning, planting and maintaining 
plantings at major sites throughout the County, and at entrances to the County and city in 
cooperation with local governments. 



4

The Tompkins County Chamber of Commerce serves as administrator and grantor for 
these funds in cooperation with Cooperative Extension. 

Community Celebrations 
These grants support an event, program, or series of events that are free and open to all, 
planned by community members as a benefit to the community such as an observance, 
commemoration, or salute that has meaning for the community. One main distinction from 
this program and the Tourism Development Grants is that the grant applicants do not have 
to target out-of-town visitors in their marketing efforts. 

The County Historian serves as chair of the Celebrations Committee that oversees these funds. 

The revised local law was approved in 2001, and enacted on January 1, 2002. The 3% room 
tax graduated to 5% as follows: 

3% - until May 1, 2002    
4% - until December 1, 2002  
4 ½ % - until June 1, 2003 
5% - June 1, 2003 and beyond 

The 2% increase in Room Tax was proposed to provide a boost to the County’s tourism 
development.  The goal was to stabilize and expand enterprises that serve tourists and 
visitors, and consolidate the County’s image as a tourist destination.  The STPB continued 
to provide oversight of the use of these funds.  

The additional 2% funds are dispersed in several ways to enhance a visitor’s stay in the area.  
In evaluating the strengths of the County, and in comparing it to others in the region, it was 
recognized that some of what made us special existed on very shaky ground. These new 
funds provided a catalyst, gelling our position as an attractive community to visit and to 
invest in. By defining and strengthening our cultural resources and highlighting the County’s 
natural beauty with plantings and beautification projects throughout the city and towns, 
Tompkins County has worked to stand out out above other communities not only within the 
region but also within the state and nation. 

In June 2011, the Tompkins County Tourism Program received full time staff support for 
the first time from the Tompkins County Planning Department for strategic planning, grant 
management and overall program development, coordination and evaluation. This work is 
performed in direct support of the Strategic Tourism Planning Board’s mission to provide 
oversight and strategic direction for tourism initiatives that promote economic development 
and enhance the quality of life in Tompkins County. The major portion of this support 
consists of 35 hours a week of staff support by the Senior Planner/Tourism Coordinator. 

Since the 2% increase was first enacted, several additional product development programs 
have been added to the list of programs that are supported by room tax, including the 
Tompkins Festivals Program, general operating support for CAP and the Ticket Center, and 
a hospitality workforce development program offered by the WIB and TC3.



Background and Intended use 
of 

Revenues Generated by the 2% Increase in Room Tax 

The County currently collects 3% room tax revenues from hotels and bed & breakfast 
establishments.  The County keeps a small portion of these revenues to cover administrative 
expenses.  The majority of the funds are administered by the Convention and Visitors Bureau to 
provide County-wide marketing to tourists.  The Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STP) 
oversees the CVB’s activities and reports back to the BOR.  A small pot of money – ranging 
from $20-40,000 annually -- is set aside for tourism product development grants.  These grants 
are administered by the STP Board and the Board of Representatives (BOR).   

The 2% increase in Room Tax was proposed to provide a boost to the County’s tourism 
development.  The goal is to stabilize and expand enterprises that serve tourists and visitors, and 
consolidate the County’s image as a tourist destination.  The STP will continue to provide 
oversight of the use of these funds.  

The additional 2% funds will be dispersed in several ways to enhance a visitor’s stay in the area.  
In evaluating the strengths of the County, and in comparing it to others in the region, it was 
recognized that some of what makes us special exists on very shaky ground. These new funds 
will provide a catalyst, gelling our position as an attractive community to visit and to invest in. 
By defining and strengthening our cultural resources and highlighting the County’s natural 
beauty with plantings and beautification projects throughout the city and towns, Tompkins 
County will stand out far above other communities not only within the region but also within the 
state and nation. 

Distribution and administration of the 2% funds are detailed below.  The objective is to invest in 
the County’s tourism infrastructure by: 
• Beautifying our communities so that they are welcoming to visitors – especially the gateway

communities. 
• Improving signage to key destinations.
• Strengthening cultural and visitor oriented organizations.

Details of Distribution and Administration of the 2% funds 

The STP Board reviewed the 2% Room Tax increase proposal during the winter of 2000/2001.  
At its May meeting the STP approved a motion to increase the Room Tax rate to 5% with the 
following recommendations: 

1. The increase should be gradually phased in: 1% the first year, 1.5% the second year, and 2%
thereafter.

Room Tax Increase -- Implementation Guidelines 
October 23, 2001 

Page 1 



2. Distribution of funds should support four types of activities:
• Sustain not-for-profit cultural organizations
• Support beautification, signage, and public art
• Support capital projects
• Support celebrations

3. Distribution of allocations to these four activities needs to be flexible – the activities cannot
be assigned a fixed percent in perpetuity, or year to year.  Opportunities and priorities change;
and some projects such as signage will be mostly complete after a short time period.

The following detailed proposal for distribution of funds reflects this guidance from the STP. 

Distribution of Increased Revenue – Overview 

Distribution of funds will gradually change over the first three years as revenues increase.   As 
noted above, distribution will be flexible and the STP and the Board of Representatives will 
review the distribution guidelines periodically.  The table provides a preliminary guideline (for 
illustration purposes only) for distribution to the four activities.  The second line shows the 
percent increase in Room Tax rate and the projected increase in revenues (based on 2000 
revenues). 

Preliminary Guideline to Distribution of Increased Room Tax Funds 

      2002       2003  2004 and beyond 
1% --- $200,000 1.5% --- $300,000 2% --- $400,000 

Activity $ $ $ 
Sustain cultural org’s 80,000 120,000 180,000 
Beauty and signage 80,000 70,000 60,000 
Capital projects 30,000 100,000 150,000 
Celebrations 10,000 10,000 10,000 

Fund administrators will be ex-officio members of the STP.   Distribution of funds will be made 
on regular granting cycles.  Awards will reviewed by the STP to assure coordination with the 
STP’s Tourism Development Plan.  Administrators will be eligible to receive 5-10% 
administrative fees to cover their costs. 

Activity Administrator 
Sustain cultural org’s CAP 
Beauty and signage C of C 
Capital projects TCAD 
Celebrations Historian 

Room Tax Increase -- Implementation Guidelines 
October 23, 2001 

Page 2 



Distribution – Details and Procedure 

A) Sustain Cultural Organizations:

By stabilizing cultural organizations, they will be able to continue to grow their programs as well 
as develop more collaborative efforts towards becoming a primary draw to the County for 
visitors, new residents, and new businesses. 

General operating support for 501(c)3, non-university and college affiliates, performing 
and visual arts organizations and museums whose programs are demonstrably geared to 
visitors and the general public. The organizations must: 

1) Maintain professional standards of operation including paid, full-time, professional
executive/managing director  
2) Operate, own or rent a designated facility (to include an office)
accessible to the general public 

Currently, such organizations include the Hangar Theatre, The Kitchen Theatre, 
the Firehouse Theatre, the Cayuga Chamber Orchestra, PRI, the Sciencenter, and 
the Tompkins County Museum.  Others may be added to this list over time.  

I. Program support for not-for-profit arts and cultural organizations that do 
not fit the above guidelines. Program support includes such areas as artistic 
salaries, exhibits, readings, event facility rental, publicity and marketing, etc. 

II. The development grants program (originally funded under the 3% Room 
Tax)  will be incorporated under the funding from the 2% increase.  This will free 
an additional  $20-40,000 for tourism marketing. 

All applicant organizations must 
• Demonstrate sound governance, administrative and financial practices
• Show long-range program planning
• Have an articulated, executable marketing and public relations plan in place for the coming

program year
• Show a commitment to collaborative cultural tourism efforts and initiatives.

All performing arts organizations must sell their tickets through the Ticket Center at Clinton 
House.  All applicants must regularly list their events on IthacaEvents.com. 

The Community Arts Partnership will serve as administrator and grantor for these funds. 

Room Tax Increase -- Implementation Guidelines 
October 23, 2001 

Page 3 



B. Beautification, Public/Outdoor Art, and Signage Projects 

These programs will create a lasting impression for visitors and help to create a visual unity for 
the County. The majority of these funds will be used for beautification. We expect that the costs 
for signage will diminish within a few years once most signs have been erected. However, there 
will be some cost for maintenance. 

These funds will be used for a program of planning, planting and maintaining plantings at major 
sites throughout the County, and at entrances to the County and city in cooperation with local 
governments.  County funds will be matched by local contributions. The Convention and Visitor 
Bureau’s Beautification Committee, which has representation from the Ithaca Downtown 
Partnership, Cooperative Extension, and other appropriate groups, will coordinate this work. The 
Beautification Committee will also recommend possible sites and funding for public art. They 
will also continue to coordinate the signage project and support road signs directing visitors and 
residents to tourist sites, parks, shopping areas, museums, etc.  

The Tompkins County Chamber of Commerce will administer and serve as grantor of these 
funds through the Convention and Visitors Bureau.  

C. Capital Projects and Related Feasibility Studies 

This will focus on major visitor-generating projects such as a new meeting center, the State 
Theater, and museums. 

These funds can be used for: 
• feasibility studies of potential capital projects
• seed money or one-time investments in unique capital projects
• ongoing debt funding of building projects

Eligibility: large, tourist/visitor generating not-for-profit or public-purpose projects.  Examples of 
projects include the proposed wine-center, the State Theater renovation, and the proposed 
meeting center.  Organizations such as PRI, the Sciencenter, and the Dewitt Historical Society 
will also be eligible. 

Tompkins County Area Development (TCAD) will serve as administrator and grantor for these 
funds. 

D. Celebrations 

The County Historian will serve as administrator and grantor for these funds that will help fund 
community celebrations.  

CVB Action Steps:2%whitepaper 09-01
Room Tax Increase -- Implementation Guidelines 

October 23, 2001 
Page 4 



 
 

Ithaca/Tompkins County Convention & Visitors Bureau 

 
A Division of the Tompkins County Chamber of Commerce 

904 East Shore Drive , Ithaca, NY 14850 • Tel: 607-272-1313 • 800-284-8422 • Fax: 607-272-7617 • 
www.VisitIthaca.com 

 
 

 
 

First Quarter 2018 - CVB Report to the Board 
 
Marketing: 
Simpleview is here! 
A major priority of Q1 has been implementing Simpleview, a new CRM/CMS (Customer Relationship 
Management/Content Management System) tool designed specifically for destination marketing 
organizations.  Simpleview allows the CVB to manage all contacts and communications in one central 
location, eliminating 80 separate spreadsheets used prior to this system.  In addition, Simpleview feeds 
the content to VisitIthaca.com through an extranet.  The extranet allows partners to update their 
listings, add images, and respond to leads from the Sales & Marketing departments. It also allows for 
better information integration to I Love NY.  The extranet roll-out was planned in phases to work with 
specific partner groups, with multiple training opportunities conducted over the phone and in-person. 
Partners continue to embrace Simpleview, and to take time to refresh their website listings.  
 
VisitIthaca.com: 
A digital version of the 2018 Travel Guide was available on VisitIthaca.com in the first week of January, 
with 211 unique views for the month.  
Unique Users (-5.3%) and Sessions (-6.38%) slightly dipped from 2017 for the month of January, 
however there was a significant jump in overall pageviews (+24.4%) and decrease in bounce rate (-33%) 
demonstrating qualified visitors are spending time on the website.  Analytics for partner display ads in 
2017 have been reviewed internally and overall performed well with strong click through rates. Based 
on analytics, the rates & offerings for digital advertising are currently being updated, with the intention 
on continuing to provide value and fair opportunity to partners.  New and more robust website content 
development in 2018 will include:  guided- and self-guided tours; health & wellness offerings; 
agriculinary experiences; promoting holiday travel for July and November-January. 
 
Digital & Social: 
Digital campaigns in Q1 focused primarily on targeting out of state visitors for Winter Recess.     
We saw great engagement across social media during Winter Recess – from visitors as well as 
participating businesses! Events.VisitIthaca.com saw a 27% increase in pageviews from February 2017; 
pageviews for the Winter Recess event more than doubled.  Gorges Ithaca Half campaign was launched 
on Facebook/Instagram targeting runners in our drive markets and is performing well. 
 
The #IthacaisPeople Instagram Takeover that saw the most engagement in February and resulted in the 
most new followers thanks to a Cornell undergrad showing the perspective of a chimesmaster.  
 
Agriculinary Tourism:  
Agriculinary tourism marketing messaging will focus on two segments, foodies and families, running a 
digital campaign through social media, visitithaca.com and enewsletters from mid-March through 
summer.  The first round of microgrant projects are coming to completion.  The first microgrant 
reimbursement will be processed to Sapsquash.   
  
An STI grant application was submitted to STPB for gap funding for the Agriculinary Tourism Coordinator 

http://www.visitithaca.com/
http://www.visitithaca.com/
http://www.visitithaca.com/


 
 

Ithaca/Tompkins County Convention & Visitors Bureau 

 
A Division of the Tompkins County Chamber of Commerce 

904 East Shore Drive , Ithaca, NY 14850 • Tel: 607-272-1313 • 800-284-8422 • Fax: 607-272-7617 • 
www.VisitIthaca.com 

 
 

through 12/31/18.  The application passed the grant committee and STPB, and we are awaiting final 
approval. 
 
 
 
Media Placements: 
While winter and Q1 is typically our destination’s slowest month for visitation, it was a very busy time 
for media coverage for our partners and the Finger Lakes as a whole, resulting in over 59 million 
reaches.  Here’s what your CVB delivered: 
 
Vogue US online (3 million reach) includes Argos Inn, Carriage House, Found Taughannock Falls State 
Park, and the Ithaca Farmers Market in its story published in January.  “The NoMad’s Wine Director 
Shares His Weekend Guide to New York’s Finger Lakes”  
 
The Knot (11.9 million unique monthly visitors) named La Tourelle Resort & Spa in Ithaca as one of the 
best “Pet-Friendly Wedding Venues You’ll Want to Book Immediately.” The writer mentions its location 
in “the breathtaking Finger Lakes region of New York,” the 70 acres of land on the property and the pet-
friendly atmosphere at the resort. 
 
Forbes (29.7m unique monthly visitors) included La Tourelle Resort & Spa in its list of luxury, pet-
friendly wedding venues. The article highlights the property’s 70 acres that sit in the midst of the wine 
region and suggests the resort for either an intimate or grand ceremony. 
 
Bridal Pulse (23.4k unique monthly visitors) listed La Tourelle Resort & Spa as one of the best dog-
friendly honeymoon destinations. The article describes the 70 acres of natural landscape and the 
picturesque grounds of the resort that a couple can enjoy with their furry friend. The outlet posted the 
article on their Facebook page, reaching 6,114 followers. 
 
The Good Life (870.5k in circulation), Dr. Oz's print magazine, included expert insight from Rasa Spa in 
Ithaca on how best to handle foot care. The article mentions Rasa Spa's advice to soothe achy feet with 
a microwaved wool sock full of uncooked grain and a pinch of dried lavender. The Good Life is 
distributed to readers interested in Dr. Oz's favorite tips and personal stories. 

 
Travel Channel (9.4 million unique monthly visitors) listed Firelight Camps as one of the best U.S. 
resorts for a foodie workshop. The writer explains how guests at Firelight Camps attend a 70-acre 
foraging expedition and a final hands-on feast with Food Network star Emma Frisch. 
 
Fathom (617k unique monthly visitors) posted a full feature story on the Finger Lakes wine region, 
highlighting it as an under-the-radar destination that wine lovers must experience. The writer provides 
an overview of the perfect stay, mentioning Argos Inn, The William Henry Miller Inn and Inns of Aurora 
for room booking, as well as an expansive list of wineries, breweries and restaurants travelers can 
enjoy.  

Shape (3.5m unique monthly visitors) mentioned the region as one of the best Valentine's Day 
getaways for active couples. The article lists romantic experiences at Belhurst Castle, Argos Inn and 
Geneva on the Lake. 

http://www.visitithaca.com/
https://www.vogue.com/article/wine-guide-finger-lakes-ithaca-aurora-upstate-new-york
https://url.emailprotection.link/?awS9Dl2CT7igtMOhKHndsRN5uM-0tGVxxum5O6mmGkfgyXpKab8HgysN6dIQiG675lhYmiIhByz0efVX2wK1FsSYmOZGYxEi8MU3CWmvATsn4djOH1fS-EnwIlkQwP-D1
https://url.emailprotection.link/?a-BtBo3oWWHU2Zb1Det-xZplthx1hT1ETgA320gcpOPP6OyD-COIOqfdocwoSxP6IyZEv6bslh5z9WerpuKxALVrkJNvliJVyWuEQtnDIGFLK7AcMccyGOmItiovCJqDSymJhJ9OP88l3_Wbz8PFPTt_Rwz6-7FG3zuLx8ZFlevc%7E
https://url.emailprotection.link/?a_RvPFSL_5nhCWmX2lpOct9kni9AW_cHy-ERfycoKCtXgafKNUzVsRr-H8QtiXTiRz6Lz1n0wxensJeB7q3JgZ8x313x0VNFYkiVTFINNr9UXZWhEytRwlzHPtOas31k-
https://url.emailprotection.link/?aAmyAO_nS_C1aDgBLeKyGTmbQbNBbkXpPMcnb7RreDXr_8iuy0xsJ8qoMMqU2Dix5SsxGvaQst19imr6BncxZwg%7E%7E
https://www.travelchannel.com/interests/food-and-drink/articles/best-us-resorts-with-foodie-workshops
https://fathomaway.com/what-to-do-finger-lakes-new-york/
https://www.shape.com/lifestyle/fit-getaways/valentines-day-getaways-active-couples-will-love


 
 

Ithaca/Tompkins County Convention & Visitors Bureau 

 
A Division of the Tompkins County Chamber of Commerce 

904 East Shore Drive , Ithaca, NY 14850 • Tel: 607-272-1313 • 800-284-8422 • Fax: 607-272-7617 • 
www.VisitIthaca.com 

 
 

 
 

Sales: 
The first quarter of every year kicks off tradeshow season for the sales department, especially in the 
tour and travel market segment.  Tompkins County was represented at ABA, Heartland Travel, PBA 
Marketplace and ESSAE Awards Banquet.  While updating data in Simpleview, the sales team completed 
more than 700 interactions with potential clients to bring meetings, conferences, and tours to Tompkins 
County.  We also hosted the Travel Alliance Partner’s Board of Directors meeting, exposing top tour 
operators to our destination, and offering them new experiences to include in their guaranteed 
departure tours.  Planning has begun to execute a cooperative sales mission to Albany based meeting 
planners with partners with meeting facilities. 
  
Leads and Assists: 
8 meeting leads were distributed with six turning definitebooking for an economic impact of $334,470 
2 meeting leads remain as tentative for the quarter 
19 tour leads were distributed with 11 turning definitebooking and five lost 
3 tour leads remain tentative for the quarter 
 
Visitor Experience: 
New Ambassador Training Program to Launch in 2018! 
The CVB & the Tompkins County Workforce Development Board have partnered to submit an STI grant 
to bring a nationally recognized and highly customizable Tourism Ambassador training program to 
Tompkins County entitled Visitor Journey Arrival 2 Departure (A2D) Training.  The CVB was instrumental 
in garnering letters of support and/or positive feedback from over 45 tourism partners with a vested 
interested in bringing the Visitor Journey A2D program to Tompkins County.  If the grant is funded, the 
program should be able to launch    
 
Winter Recess brings Teachers from Hawaii! 
The Winter Recess Teacher Festival continues to be a successful winter promotion seeing over 4200 
teachers and families during the President’s week break, representing a 13% increase over 2017 festival 
visitors.  This year the festival offered nearly 250 individual events and deals, thanks to the diligent work 
of the Visitor Experience team.  In addition to NYS public educators, we also saw teachers from HI, CT, 
VA, NJ, MA, PA, NC, and NH.  Visitor spending tracked through the receipt drawings tallied nearly $11K 
in incremental economic impact.  We are still compiling room nights booked.   
 
Preparing for Tompkins Center of History & Culture 
The Visitor Experience team has been meeting with Tompkins Center for History County Heritage  & 
Culture Center partners that have expressed an interest in having retail products available in the new 
Visitor Center to increase public awareness of their institutions.  These exploratory meetings serve to 
guide the retail business plan for the opening of the center in 2019. 
 
The Visitor Experience department continued to meet with designers and architects to finalize plans for 
the renovation at East Shore Drive and the build out of the Tompkins County History & Culture 
Center.Center for History & Culture.   
 

http://www.visitithaca.com/


 
 

Ithaca/Tompkins County Convention & Visitors Bureau 

 
A Division of the Tompkins County Chamber of Commerce 

904 East Shore Drive , Ithaca, NY 14850 • Tel: 607-272-1313 • 800-284-8422 • Fax: 607-272-7617 • 
www.VisitIthaca.com 

 
 

Visitor Touchpoints: 
Visitor Experiences participated in two Open Houses on the Ithaca College campus with a combined 
attendance over 600 prospective students.  
 
By the Numbers: 
  1ST Q 

2018 
1st Q 
2017 

YOY % 
Change 

Phone 234 430 -46 
ESD Traffic 187 420 -44 
DVC Traffic 346 744 -53 
Taug. Traffic 0 0 0 
Chats 629 877 -28 
TG Requests* 684 1065 -36 
Off-site Events** 2120 2600 -18 
Total 4200 6136 -32 
 
*We discovered that the online travel guide request form was not functioning for 10 days during March 
2018, which accounts for the decrease in requests. 
**We did not attend the Speedo Swim meet in 2018, resulting in 1000 less off-site event touchpoints. 
 
 
If we’re concerned about data collection by some employees over this period, should we consider a nice 
way of sharing that information now?  
 
 

http://www.visitithaca.com/

	Mission Impact Exercise – Review Documents.pdf
	room tax history
	01whitepaper

	03-21-18 STPB Draft MinutesV2.pdf
	Attendees:

	4_18_18_STPB_agenda.pdf
	Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board
	AGENDA           Start





